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I. DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

A. INTRODUCTION TO THE SERVICE AREA 

1. Background of the Transportation Disadvantaged Program 

Transportation is often the vital link between not only quality of life, but, jobs, access to medical 
care, and other life sustaining needs for some of the most vulnerable citizens. In 1989, a major 
commitment to mobility in the State of Florida was formalized when the Legislature revised 
Chapter 427, Florida Statutes (F.S.). Chapter 427, F.S. was created to promote the delivery of 
transportation services to the transportation disadvantaged (TD) in a coordinated manner that is 
cost effective, efficient, and reduces hgmentation and duplication of services, as well as, increase 
planning for transportation services. Coordination of transportation involves transporting as many 
riders for the least cost in as few miles as possible. Implementation of the transportation 
disadvantaged program is through Chapter 41-2, Florida Administrative Code (F. A. C.). 
Realizing that transportation is essential to all the citizens, the Florida Coordinated Transportation 
System (FCTS) was created. The FCTS is explained in greater detail in Section 3, 
Organizational Chart. 

In August 1994, Taylor County Board of County Commissioners (TBCC) applied for and was 
awarded the designation as the Official Planning Agency for Taylor County. The Board of 
Commissioners continues to serve as the Designated Official Planning Agency (DOPA). The 
County has received funding from the Transportation Disadvantage Trust Fund since 1993. 

2. Designation Date / History 

Big Bend Transit, Inc. is a private, nonprofit corporation, incorporated in March 1978 for the 
primary purpose of coordinating, consolidating, planning for andlor providing efficient and 
effective paratransit services for the elderly, handicapped, and other transportation disadvantaged 
persons and to fiuther the public knowledge of paratransit needs, transportation patterns and 
opportunities through research, study, evaluation, preparation of publications, providing educational 
opportunities, advocating and consulting with transportation professionals. 

Big Bend Transit, Inc. was recommended for designation as the Community Transportation Coordinator 
for Taylor County by the Local Coordinating Board on September 1 1, 1990 by the then Designated 
Official Planning Agency, North Florida Regional Planning Council, and confmed by the 
Transportation Disadvantaged Commission on October 10, 1990. Big Bend was awarded a 
new contract September 15, 2006 and will continue as the Community Transportation 
Coordinator until June 30, 201 1. The Memorandums of Agreement is an attachment. 

Big Bend Transit, Inc. provides reservation (scheduled 24 hours in advance) transportation service 
demand response transportation services, and contracted subscription transportation services. The 
service is provided to employment centers and to social service, health, medical, shopping, 
recreational facilities. Inter-county transportation service is provided fiom and between each of the 
counties in the service area, with the predominate inter-county movement being between each of the 
four rural counties contiguous to Leon County, which provides a high concentration of 

C employment opportunities and specialized medical services for the Panhandle area of Florida. 
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All transportation services are scheduled and dispatched by personnel located in the three 
operations centers. The services are utilized seven days per week, generally between the hours of 
6:00 a.m. until 10:OO p.m. The service provided by Big Bend Transit, Inc. consolidates a 
significant portion of the existing human services transportation in each of the counties and 
provides an alternative mode of, or in some instances, an opportunity for transportation to the 
general public of this rural area. 

Big Bend Transit, Inc. services include, but are not limited to, intra- and inter-country 
reservation, demand, response and subscription service available to the general public and 
transportation disadvantaged sponsored and non-sponsored in Gadsden, Jefferson, Leon, 
Madison, and Taylor Counties. Big Bend Transit, Inc. contracts with other local providers of 
specialized transportation services in order to expand the resources available to accomplish the 
transportation service requirements of the transportation disadvantaged. 

In addition to the public, users of the coordinated transportation system for Taylor County 
include: 

AHCA, Medicaid 
DCF, Developmental Services 
Taylor ARC 
United Cerebral Palsy 
Various hospitals, clinics, and physicians 
Various insurance companies 
DLES, Division of Vocational Rehabilitation 
DOE, Division of Blind Services 
DCF, Disability Determination 
DLES, Wages 
Special Needs Adult Program (SNAP), Taylor County School 
Board 
Community Care of Disabled Adults 
Taylor County Veteran's Services 

The active fleet of the coordinated system for the delivery of specialized transportation services 
will consist of automobiles, 14-passenger vans, modified vans equipped with wheelchair lifts and 
securements, modified vans equipped with stretcher transport capability, mini-buses, and school- 
type buses. 
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ORGANIZATIONAL CHART OF THE 
LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD 

Designation Position 
on Elected Official, Primary Chairman of TDLCB 

Elected Official, Alternate Vice-chairman of TDLCB 

1 Eric Scott I Alternate I Earlv Childhood Services I 

* Florida Agency for Health Care Administration 
** Florida Department of Labor and Employment Services 
* * * Florida Department of Transportation 

4. Consistency Review of Other Plans 

This Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan is consistent, to the maximum extent feasible, 
with the following approved documents: 

Local Government Comvrehensive Plan. Pursuant to Chapter 163, F.S., each local government in 
Florida must prepare and adopt a comprehensive plan which inventories existing land uses, 
infiastructures, housing conditions, transportation systems, and established goals, objectives 
and policies designed to manage growth during the planning period, which must be, at a 
minimum ten years. Local comprehensive plans must contain at least one or more specific 
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objectives that would "coordinate with the plans of any appropriate resource planning and 
management plan prepared pursuant to Chapter 380, F.S. and approved by the Governor and 
Cabinet, and the Florida Department of Transportation's 5-year Transportation Plan". 

Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged 5 Year / 20 Year Plan. The statewide five- 
year plan, mandated by the Chapter 427, F.S., projects the demand for t ransportah 
disadvantaged services over the next five years and compares the cost of meeting that demand 
with the projected availability of funds. The plan also develops goals, objectives, and 
implementation strategies for meeting the needs of the transportation disadvantaged. The plan 
is comprised of many sections; among them are descriptions of the transportationdisadvantaged 
services. 



TAYLOR COUNTY TRANPORTATION DISADVANTAGED 
LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD 

BY-LAWS 2009-2010 

OUR MISSION: To insure the availability of efficient, cost-effective, and quality 
transportation services for transportation disadvantaged persons. 

Section 1: Preamble 

The following sets forth the bylaws which shall serve to guide the proper functioning of 
the Taylor County Transportation Disadvantaged Local Coordinating Board. The intent 
is to provide procedures and policies for fulfilling the requirements of Chapter 427, 
Florida Statutes, Rule 41-2, Florida Administrative Code (FAC) , and subsequent laws 
setting forth requirements for the coordination of transportation services to the 
transportation disadvantaged. 

Section 11: Name and Purpose of Board 

A. Name. The name of the Coordinating Board shall be the Taylor County 
Transportation Disadvantaged Local Coordinating Board (LCB), hereinafter 
referred to as the Board. 

B. Purpose. The purpose of the Board is to identify local service needs, assist in 
planning local needs, and provide information, advice and direction to the 
Community Transportation Coordinator on the provision of services to the 
transportation disadvantaged. 

Section 111: Membership, Appointment, Term of Off~ce, and Termination of 
Membership 

A. Voting Members. In accordance with Chapter 427.01 57, Florida Statutes, all 
members of the Board shall be appointed by the Taylor County Board of 
Commissioners. 

The following agencies or groups shall be represented on the Board as voting members 

1. A County Commissioner or other elected official from service area. 
2. A local representative from the Florida Department of Transportation. 
3. A local representative from the Florida Department of Children and 

Family Services. 
4. A person over sixty years of age representing the elderly in the county. 
5. A person recommended by the local Veterans Service Officer representing 

the Veteran's in the county. 
6. A local representative for children at risk. 
7. A local representative from the Florida Department of Elder Affairs. 



8. A local representative of the Florida Agency for Health Care 
Administration. 

9. A representative of the Regional Workforce Development Board. 
10. A representative of the local medical community(loca1 health department, 

hospitals, assisted living facilities, etc.) 
1 1. A person with a disability representing the disabled of the county. 
12. A representative of the Public Education Community which could include 

but not be limited to, a representative of the local School Board, Headstart, 
or school transportation services. 

13. A local representative of the Florida Division of Vocational Rehabilitation 
or the Division of Blind Services representing the Department of 
Education 

14. A person representing the economically disadvantaged in the county 
recognized by the Florida Association of Community Action. 

15. In areas where they exist, a designee of the local Mass Transit or Public 
Transit System except in cases where they are also the Community 
Transportation Coordinator. This is not applicable in Taylor County. 

16. Two citizen advocate representatives in the county, one of whom must be 
a person who uses the transportation services of the system as their 
primary means of transportation. 

17. An experienced representative of the local private for profit transportation 
industry . If such a representative is not available, a private non-profit 
representative will be appointed except if representative is also the 
Community Transportation Coordinator. 

B. Alternate Members. The designated agencies may name one (1) alternate who 
may vote only in the absence of that member on a one-vote-per-member basis. 

C. Non-voting Members. Additional non-voting members may be appointed by the 
Board of County Commissioners. If an existing transportation board or 
committee exists, the Board of County Commissioners shall review it's 
membership and consider appointing some of it's members as non-voting 
members to the Board if so appropriate. 

D. Terms of Appointment. Except for the Chairperson and agency representative, 
the members of the board shall be appointed for three (3) year staggered terms 
with initial membership being appointed equally, for one , two and three years. 
The Chairperson is appointed for a two year term. 

E. Termination of Membership. Any member of the Board may resign at any 
time by notice in writing to the Chairperson unless otherwise specified in such 
notice, activities through attendance of scheduled meetings, except for reasons of 
an unavoidable nature. In each instance of an unavoidable absence, the member 
should ensure their alternate will attend. The Board of County Commissioners 
upon recommendation of the planning coordinator under the direction of the 
Board shall review, and consider rescinding the appointment of any voting 



member of the Board who fails to attend three (3) consecutive meetings. As 
required by the Planning Agency Operating Guidelines, the County shall notify 
the Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged if any state agency 
voting member or their alternate fails to attend three consecutive meetings 

SECTION IV: OFFICERS AND DUTIES 

A. Number. The officers of the Local Coordinating Board shall be a Chairperson 
and a Vice-Chairperson. 

B. Chairperson. The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings, and in the event of 
hisher absence, or at hisher direction, the Vice-Chairperson shall assume the 
duties and powers of the Chairperson. The Chairperson will be appointed by the 
County Board of Commissioners. The Chairperson is responsible for the minutes 
of the meeting and for all meeting notices and agendas. The Chairperson shall 
work closely with the Planning Coordinator planning meetings, reviewing 
required submissions under the terms of the grant contracts, and other meetings or 
events required for the Local Coordinating Board to be effective and in 
compliance with the Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged 
rules and regulations. 

C. Vice Chairperson. The Local Coordinating Board shall hold an organization 
meeting each year for the purpose of electing a Vice-Chairperson. The Vice- 
Chairperson shall be elected by a majority vote of a quorum of the members of 
the Board and voting at the organizational meeting. The Vice-Chairperson shall 
serve a term of one year starting at the following meeting. 

SECTION V: BOARD MEETINGS 

A. Regular Meetings. The Board shall meet as often as necessary in 
Order to meet its responsibilities. However, as required by Chapter 427.0157, 
Florida Statutes, the Board shall meet at least quarterly. 

B. Parliamentary Procedures. The Board will conduct business using 
parliamentary procedures according to Robert's Rules or Order, except in 
conflict with these bylaws. 

C. Quorum and Voting. At all meetings of the Board, the presence in person of a 
majority of voting members shall be necessary and sufficient to constitute a 
quorum for the transaction of business. In the absence of a quorum, those present 
may without notice other than by announcement at the meeting, recess the 
meeting fiom time to time, until a quorum may be present. At any such recessed 
meeting any business may be transaction which might have been at the meeting as 
originally called. A quorum shall consist of fifty percent of the members 
appointed to the Board. At all meetings of the Board at which a quorum is 
present, all matters, except as otherwise expressly required by law or these 



Bylaws, shall be decided by the vote of a majority of the members of the Board 
present. As required by Chapter 286.012, all Board members, including the 
Chairperson of the Board must vote on all official actions taken by the Board 
unless when there appears to be a possible conflict of interest with a member or 
members of the Board. Prior to the vote being taken, member(s) must publicly 
state to the Board the nature of his or her interest in the matter on which the vote 
it taken. Within fifteen days of the vote, the member(s) shall disclose the nature 
of his or her interest as public record. 

D. Notice of Meetings. Notices and tentative agendas shall be sent to all Board 
members, other interested parties, and the news media at least one week prior to 
the Board meeting. Such notice shall state the date, time, and the place of the 
meeting. 

SECTION VI: STAFF 

A. General. The County Commission shall provide the Local Coordinating Board 
with sufficient staff support and resources to enable the Board to fulfill its 
responsibilities as set forth in chapter 427.0157 Florida Statutes. These 
responsibilities include providing sufficient staff to manage and oversee the 
operations of the Board, assist in scheduling meetings, preparing meeting agenda 
packets, and other necessary administrative duties as required by the Board 
within the limit of resources available. 

SECTION VII: BOARD DUTIES 

A. Board Duties. The Local Coordinating Board member duties shall include but 
not be limited to duties as specified in Chapter 427, Florida Statutes and Rule 41- 
2. FAC. 

1. Maintain official meeting minutes, including an attendance roster, 
reflecting official action and provide a copy to the State Commission and 
maintain a copy in the County Planning Coordinators files. 

2. Review and approve the Memorandum of Agreement and Transportation 
Disadvantaged Service Plan. 

3. On a continuing basis, evaluate services provided under the approved 
designated service plan. Annually evaluate the Community 
Transportation Coordinator's performance in general and relative to the 
Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged standards and the 
current service plan elements. Recommendations in reference to the 
Community Transportations Coordinator shall include, at a minimum, an 
evaluation of competition, and cost and availability based on modules 
contained within the State Commission's Workbook for Community 
Transportation Coordinators and Providers in Florida. 

4. In cooperation with the Coordinator, review and provide recommendations 
to the State Commission and the Board of County Commissioners on 
applications for local, state, or federal funds relating to transportation of 



the transportation disadvantaged in the county to ensure that any 
expenditures within the county are provided in the most cost effective 
and efficient manner. 

5. Appoint a Grievance Committee to serve as mediators to process and 
investigate complaints from agencies, users, potential users of the system, 
and the Community Transportation Coordinator in the county designated 
service area. The committee will make recommendations to the Board 
and address issues in a timely manner. At least three (3) voting members 
of the Board shall be appointed to the Committee. 

6. Review coordination strategies for service provision to the transportation 
disadvantaged in the county to seek innovative ways to improve cost 
effectiveness, efficient, safety, hours, and types of service to increase 
ridership to a broader population. Such strategies should also encourage 
multi-county and regional transportation service agreements between area 
coordinators and adjacent counties when it is appropriate and cost 
effective to do so. 

7. Work in conjunction with the Community Transportation Coordinator to 
develop applications for funding that may become available. 

8. Assist the Community Transportation Coordinator in establishing 
priorities with regard to the recipients of transportation disadvantaged 
services that are purchased through the Transportation Disadvantaged 
Trust Fund. 

9. Annually review coordination contracts to advise Coordinator whether the 
continuation of said contract provides the most cost effective and efficient 
transportation available. 

10. Annually review all transportation operator contracts as to the 
effectiveness and efficiency of the transportation operator and recommend 
approval or disapproval of such contracts to the Coordinator. 

11. Annually hold a public hearing for the purpose of receiving input on 
unrnet needs or other issues that relate to local transportation services. 

12. Annually review Annual Operations Report of the Community 
Transportation Coordinator. 

Section VIII: Committees 

A. Committees. Committees shall be designated by the Chairperson as necessary to 
investigate and report on specific subject areas of interest to the Local 
Coordinating Board and to deal with administrative and legislative procedures. 

Section IX: Communications With Other Agencies and Entities 

A. General. The Board of County Commissioners authorizes the Local 
Coordinating Board to communicate directly with other agencies and entities as 
necessary to cany out its duties and responsibilities in accordance with Rule 41-2 
FAC. 



Section X: Certifications 

The undersigned hereby certifies that the Taylor County Board of Commissioners has 
reviewed and approved a full, true, and correct copy of the By- Laws of 
Coordinating Board of the Transportation Disadvantaged on t h e e  
20 10. 

~ a f l o r  County Board of Commissioners 

The undersigned hereby certified that the Local Coordinating Board has reviewed and 
approved a full, true, and correct copy of the Bylaws on the 4- day of 

7&,,, & I "u ,2010. 

~ a t n ~ a  Patterson, Chairwoman 
Local Coordinating Board of the 
Transportation Disadvantaged. 
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federal poverty level. Low-income households often have no mobility choice other than public 

C transportation and thus generally have high potential for transit use. 

Taylor County consistently ranks in the estate Top Ten high unemployment rates. The county 
averaged and unemployment rate of 5.8% in 2004-2005 with the state average being 4.8 per Florida 
Statistical Abstract 2005. The national average was 4.7. In mid 2006 the state unemployment rate 
was 3.2% with Taylor County at 5.1 %. 

Labor 

Buckeye Florida - 800 employees 

Taylor County School Board - 600 employees 

Taylor County Correctional lnstitution - 350 

Martin Electronics - 265 employees 

Doctor's Memorial Hospital - 246 employees 

Taylor County Board of County Commissioners - 135 

City of Perry - 1 10 employees 

Walmart - 3 75 employees 

Fru-Con Construction - 225 employees 

United Welding Services, Inc - 135 employees 

Gilman Building Products - 130 employees 

RDS Manufacturing, lnc. - 105 employees 

Tom's Food's, Inc - 73 Employees 

Housing 

According to the most recent U S Census figures in 2005 the total number of households in 
Taylor County was 9,524 and that the average household size was 2.5 1. The median value of a 
owner occupied home was $66,000 with state of Florida median being $105,500. 

Health 

Currently, there is one hospital located in Taylor County. There are twelve medical offices and 
clinics. Table in the 2005 Florida Statistical Abstract provide the following information 
regarding licensed occupations and indicate .the limited availability of medical care in the 
community. There are no licensed psychologists in Taylor County. There are 17 licensed 
doctors of medicine, 2 doctors of osteopathy, 2 dentists, 2 chiropractors, 2 optometrists, 1 
podiatrist, 2 occupational therapist, 4 physical therapists, and 163 registered, practical, and 

C advanced nurses. 
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5. Local Coordinating Board Certification 

C The Taylor County Planning Agency annually submits the membership certification of the 
Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board to the Commission. The membership varies 
annually due to term expirations, resignations, and member's unavailability to attend meetings 
on a regular basis. The Taylor County Board of Commissioners also reviews and assists with 
the appointment of Local Coordinating Board Members. 

B. County Pm6le/Demographics 

Semce Area Description 

Taylor County has a land area of approximately 1,042 square miles. The county is located in the 
north central portion of the State of Florida and is bordered on the north by Madison County, 
on the east by Lafayette County, on the southeast by Dixie County, and on the northwest by 
Jefferson County. The Aucilla River forms a boundary on the northwest, the Steinhatchee 
River forms a boundary on the southeast, and the Gulf of Mexico forms a boundary to the west. 

The 2005 Census reports Taylor County's total population as 19,622. The 2005 Census 
reported the population of the City of Perry as 6407 and the unincorporated area as 13,215. 
Sixty-seven percent (67%) of the county's population is located within the unincorporated 
areas. Taylor County's population is not evenly distributed. In 2005 approximately 78 percent 
of the population lived in the Perry North Census Division, which covers 51 percent of the 
County's land area. The population / land area percentage for the Perry South Census Division is 
22 / 49. 

With approximately 1,042 square miles of land area, the County's population density in 
2005 was approximately 19 persons per square mile. The City of Perry is the most densely 
populated area in Taylor County with 1068 persons per square mile. The Perry South Census 
Division is sparsely populated with only 6.6 persons per square mile. 

Population age distribution is useful in determining mobility needs, which might be met by 
transit. The elderly typically are less likely to have access to a vehicle and thus are more 
dependent on the transit system for their needs. The 25 - 44 year old group is the largest age 
group within the County. The 65 and over population comprises 14.3 percent of the population. 

The 2005 Census reported 23.2 percent of the civilian residents of Taylor County who are 5 to 64 
year of age and who are not institutionalized have disabilities. The Census also reported that 
49.2 percent of person's 65 years and over have mobility or a self care limitation. 

Economic Information 

The 2005 Census estimates the per capita income for Taylor County in 2003 was $15,281 (1999) 
with the state average being $2 1,557 (1 999). The medium household income in Taylor County was 
$30,032 (1999) with the state average being $38,819 (1999). Taylor County has very significant 
lower income than the state average. The City of Perry has a higher percentage of individuals and 
families with incomes below the rest of the County. Per the Florida Statistical Abstract 24.8 percent 
of the children of Taylor County live below poverty level. As a whole 17.8 percent of all county 
residents are below poverty level. The State of Florida as a whole, approximately 12,4 percent of 
persons had incomes below the federal poverty level and 17.3 percent of all children lives below the 
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Land Use 

C The purpose of this section is to provide information concerning Taylor County's existing land 
use. This information was obtained from Taylor County's 1990 Data and Analysis portion of its 
Comprehensive Plan and the City of Perry's 198911990 Data and analysis portion of its 
Comprehensive Plan. 

The land use for approximately 97 percent of the acreage within the unincorporated area of the 
County has been designated as agricultural and approximately one percent is residential. Within 
the City of Perry, approximately 26 percent of the acreage is residential. 

Within the unincorporated areas of the County, four types of growth have occurred. The first 
type of land use pattern emerging is concentrated within existing public facility service areas 
immediately surrounding the municipal urban areas. The second form of development 
concentrates around the unincorporated market center which, although minus public facilities, 
has developed over time into urbanizing settlements. The third type of land use pattern is the 
development of residential lots along the Aucilla and Steinhatchee River and coastal property in 
the area of Keaton Beach. This type of rural residential development has occurred in varying 
degrees with lot sizes ranging from one-half acre to ten acre lots. The fourth pattern is radial 
growth along major roadways throughout the County. 

Transportation 

According to the 2005 Florida Statistical Abstract there were 10,779 passenger car tags in 
Taylor Count in 2004-2005. The rising cost of obtaining gas and fuel is beginning to have a 
dramatic effect on the county particularly with senior citizens and those with fixed incomes. 

The 2005 Census estimated workers 16 years and older in Taylor County commuted to in the 
following manner: 78.2 percent drove alone, 13.6 percent used carpools, 0.8 percent used 
pubic transportation, 2.9 percent used other means, and 4.8 percent walked or worked at home. 
In addition, the means of travel time to work was 20.9 minutes. 

Areas with low vehicle availability have a greater tendency to transit. The 2005 Census 
reports that approximately 743 or 1 1.6 percent of the occupied housing units in Taylor County 
did not have a vehicle. 

Major Trip GeneratorsIAttractors 

The key stops of the Taylor County Transit users are: 

Walmart 

Doctor's Memorial Hospital 

Taylor County Health Department 

Taylor County Courthouse 

Medical 06ice on Ash Street 
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Taylor County Board of 
County Commissioners 

Fl. Commission of 
Transportation 
Disadvantaged 

I 
Taylor C ounty 
Administrator 

I 
Director of Administration 
Planning Grant Coordinator 

I \ v 

Local Coordinating Board Big Bend Transit 
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Barriers to Coordination 

C There are no known noncoordinated Transportation Disadvantaged services being purchased or 
provided by local, state or federal government funds. Goal I of the Statement of Mission, Goals, and 
Objectives encourages the CTC to coordinate all TD services, and identifies solutions to potential 
barriers for an effective and efficient coordinated transportation system. 
The cost of providing transportation service is the most significant negative issue affecting the 
provision of transportation services. The CTC will continue to assist the Local Board in efforts to 
secure transportation funding opportunities. 

C. Service Analysis 

Transportation Demand and Needs Estimation 

The purpose of this chapter is to estimate the demand and unmet demand for transportation services 
by the transportation disadvantaged population. 

Demand for Specialized Transportation Semces 

The following sections will defme and discuss the various types of supply and demand applicable 
to Transportation Disadvantaged Program and forecast demand and unmet demand for 
transportation services during the 2005-2010 period. 

Supply and Demand 

Supply is the amount of goods or services provided by suppliers at various prices and other market 
conditions. Demand is the amount consumers are willing to buy under certain prices and other 
market conditions, such as consumer tastes and preferences, consumer income, consumer awareness 
and prices of substitute goods or services. 
The Transportation Disadvantaged Program bring operators to the market to provide transportation 
service for individuals to places that they want to go, and these individuals pay a price for this 
service (or have another agency pay for the service). In the market created by the service operators 
and the transportation disadvantaged, many conditions exist that affect the amount of service 
provided and trips demanded. These conditions include: 

Price 
Operating Characteristics 
Consumer Income 
Consumer Awareness of the Service 
Availability and Cost of Other Modes of Transportation 
Eligibility Requirements 

Additionally, there are other conditions that have indirect or potential impact on the supply and 
demand of services. The following section discusses issues identified by the Center for Urban 
Transportation Research that is related to the demand for transportation disadvantaged services. 
These issues include the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), transportation disadvantaged 
policy changes, the aging population, travel characteristics, and the types of demand for 
transportation disadvantaged service. 
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Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 

The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requires full accessibility of fmed-route pubic transit 
systems and the provision of complimentary paratransit service to eligible recipients by public 
transit systems. These two requirements will affect transportation service options for transportation 
disadvantaged individuals. Some trips that have been provided through the coordinated system may be 
provided through the Americans with Disabilities Act service provision in the future. 

In addition, the supply of transportation services for the disadvantaged will increase. This increase 
may reduce the unmet demand for transportation disadvantaged services through the coordinated 
system. 

Transportation Disadvantaged Policy 

According to the Center for Urban Transportation Research, policy decisions made by the Commission 
for the Transportation Disadvantaged can also affect the demand for transportation disadvantaged 
services. The following are trpes of Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged policy 
decisions that may affect the demand for services: 

Eligibility for Transportation Services and Programs 
Fare Policy 
The Types of Service Available to the Rider such as Days of Service, Advance Reservation 
Time, and Trip Lengths 

Aging of the Population 

According to the Center for Urban Transportation Research, the percentage of elderly persons in 
Florida may also affect the demand for transportation disadvantaged services. According to the 
Florida Statistical Abstract 17.4% (3,051,568) of Florida residents are over 65. In Taylor 
County, 2,99 1 residents measuring 14.3% of county residents are over 65. 

The percentage of elderly persons may affect the demand for transportation disadvantaged services 
because statistics suggest that elderly individuals are more likely to become afflicted with a disability 
than non-elderly persons. In addition, because elderly individuals are less likely to be in the work 
force, there is a higher incidence of poverty among this age group. 

Travel Characteristics of Transportation Disadvantaged Individuals 

According to the Center for Urban Transportation Research, the Nationwide Personal 
Transportation Study (NPTS) and the National Survey of Transportation Handicapped People 
(NSTHP) suggest that the disabled, elderly, and low-income populations make fewer public transit 
trips than the public. These studies also suggest that disabled individuals generally use transportation 
disadvantaged services more often that elderly or low-income individuals. Therefore, travel 
characteristics of the transportation disadvantaged population relates to the demand for transportation 
disadvantaged services. 

Transportation Di iantaged Demand Types 

The previous section identifies the conditions that affect or possess the potential to affect the demand 
of transportation disadvantaged services. There are three types of transportation disadvantaged serve 
demand that have specific application to the program. These three types of demand are: 

Unmet Demand refers to the number of trips desired but not provided because of 
insufficient service supply. Subsidizing the cost of transportation disadvantaged trips results 
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in increased demand for transportation services over the level that service providers are able 
to supply. Insufficient service supply is the result. 

Latent Demand is the demand for transportation services by individuals not 
presently in the market. The demand usually is the result of persons not being aware 
that the services exist. Once advertising and marketing for services is increased, these 
individuals enter the market. 

Derived Demand results from the participation of an agency in the Transportation 
Disadvantaged Program. If the agency did not exist, demand for transportation services 
would be lessened by the amount of the agency participation. 

In the following section, estimations of transportation disadvantaged service demand are 
calculated. Unmet demand is calculated separately and is based on forecasted operating funds. 

Calculation of Service Demand 

The process used to calculate the demand for transportation disadvantaged services was taken 
from the Center for Urban Transportation Research's Methodolop Guidelines for Forecasting 
TD Trans~ortation Demand at the Countv Level. The following section describes the 
methodology used to calculate the demand for general and program trips. 

Demand for Program Trips 

A program trip is one made by a client of a government or social service agency for 
participating in a program of that agency. Examples of program trips are trips to congregate 
meal sites, sheltered workshops, job training facilities, and Medicaid services. 

C The Center for Urban Transportation Research's methodology for forecasting the demand for 
program trips assumes that social service programs will grow at a rate sufficient to keep pace 
with growth in the Category I population. This is because the demand for program trips is 
dependent on the existence of the programs. The demand for program trips is a derived demand. 

Demand for General Trips 

A general trip is one made by a transportation disadvantaged person to a destination of his or her 
choice, not to an agency program. The approach recommended in the Center for Urban 
Transportation Research's methodology to forecast demand for general trips involves the use 
of trip rates derived in a study of paratransit demand in San Francisco. This approach has been 
recommended by the Federal Transit Administration for use in estimating demand for 
complementary paratransit services. 

In the San Francisco study, trip rates were developed h m  an evaluation of seven paratransit 
systems that were considered to provide high levels of service. These trip rates, 1.0 and 1.2 trips 
per month in urban and rural areas, respectively, represent the demand for general trips. Total 
demand for general trips is simply the Category I1 persons with access to fixed-route transit and 
the rate of 1.2 trips per month was used for Category n persons without access to fixed-route 
transit. 

Unmet Demand Estimation 

As stated earlier, unmet demand refers to the number of trips desired but not provided because 
of insufficient service supply. Subsidizing the cost of transportation disadvantaged trips results in 
increased demand for transportation services over the level that service providers are able to 
supply. When trips are subsidized, the passenger will generally demand more trips than suppliers 
are willing or able to provide. 



TAYLOR COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED SERVICE PLAN 

Unmet demand results from service levels that are not sufficient to meet the total demand for the 
present type of service at the present level of trip subsidization. The level of unmet demand will 
change as the price or level of subsidization changes. 

According to the Center for Urban Transportation Research, surveys on trip purposes by 
transportation disadvantaged individuals indicate that approximately 35 percent of trips taken are 
medical trips, 20 percent are work or educational trips, 10 percent are shopping trips, and 35 
percent are social, recreational, and other trips. The Center for Urban Transportation Research also 
suggests that the unmet demand for trips such as these will be in the same proportions. 
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Taylor County Transportation Disadvantaged Program 
Goals, Objectives, and Strategies . . 

Statement of Mission, Goals, and Objectives 

The purpose of this chapter is to provide speci£ic direction for this plan by providing a statement 
of mission, goals, and objectives. The Taylor County Local Coordinating Board for the 
Transportation Disadvantage has adopted the following mission statement, goals, and objectives. 

Coordinating Board Mission Statement 

"TO IDENTIFY TRANSPORTATION SERVICE NEEDS IN TAYLOR COUNTY AND 
ENHANCE THE MOBILITY OF THE TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED IN 
THE COUNTY." 

Coordinating Board Goals and Objectives 

Goal 1: Encourage and advise the Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) in the 
coordination of all transportation disadvantaged services that are funded with local, state andlor 
federal government funds 

Objective: Identlfy agencies that receive local, state, andfor federal government funds. Request 
that the CTC inform those agencies unfh-diar with the Transportation Disadvantaged Program 
about Chapter 427, Florida Statutes, and Rule 41 -2, Florida Administrative Code. 

Action Objective la:: The CTC staff, in cooperation with the Board members, will List 
agencies located in Taylor County that are currently receiving local, state, andlor federal funds to 
transport clients or purchase vehicles. 

Action Objective lb: CTC and assisting staff shall meet with identified agencies 
receiving hnding in order to obtain information about the amount of funding received, the type 
of vehicles that they operate, the hours that the vehicles are operated, and other pertinent 
information. 

Action Object lc: CTC to determine whether a purchase of service contract, 
coordination contract, or subcontract should be executed with each agency in order to coordinate 
the services that are currently being provided. Review at Local Coordinating Board meeting 
quarterly. 

Goal II: Identifl the most prevalent unmet needs of the transportation disadvantaged in Taylor 
County and discuss ways to meet these needs at each Local Coordinating Board meeting. 

Action Objective 2a:: CTC report on a quarterly basis the number and types of 
transportation services that are requested which the CTC is unable to provide. 



Action Objective 2b: Board members report quarterly identified unmet needs in the 

C service area they are aware of. 

Action 0 bjective 2c: CTC to meet with various local agencies and organization in 
effort to determine unmet needs. 

Goal III: Assist and advise CTC in providing transportation programs that are consumer- 
oriented and effectively encourage the use of multiple occupancy vehicles rather than single 
occupancy vehicles. 

0 bjective: CTC to provide transportation programs that maximize the use of all vehicles to 
eliminate duplication of service without inconveniencing the rider. The Local Coordinating 
Board to review at quarterly meetings. 

Action Objective 3a: CTC report on a quarterly basis the number of one-passenger trips 
provided and why they were provided. 

Action Objective 3 b: CTC will work with purchasing agencies and service providers 
(medical offices and hcilities, senior services, schools, Veteran's Service Officer, housing and 
apartment complexes, etc.) to arrange appointments in order to provide group rides. 

Action Objective 3c: Document the number of one passenger trips during the 
operating year. 

C Goal IV: Eliminate physical barriers to the use of transportation services by elderly and the 
disabled. 

Objective: Comply with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
regarding access to the provisions of transportation services. 

Action Objective 4a: Ensure CTC and the assisting staff understand the American with 
Disabilities Act during Board training sessions. 

Action Objective 4b: CTC will report to the Board alternative methods used for 
accessing transportation disadvantaged services for individuals with disabilities (i.e. Telephone 
Device for the Deai.. (TDD), radio advertising, close captioned public service announcements, 
etc.) 

Action Objective 4c: CTC will train assisting staff members regarding the utilization 
of special equipment for the disabled as we1 as the abilities of persons with disabilities. 

Action Objective 4d: CTC will ensure service is provided to persons with disab-ities. 
CTC will also ensure the level of service to those with disabilities is equivalent to those without 
disabilities including but not limited to service hours, trips rates, and equipment availability. 



Action Objective 4e: CTC will review transportation routes annually to ensure C adequate access to transportation is provided to persons with disabilities. 

Goal V: Annually evaluate the CTCYs performance based on the following criteria: Total 
service, service effectiveness, cost effectiveness and efficiency, vehicle utilization, safety, 
service availability, quality of service, and compliance with the Memorandum of Agreement. 

Action Objective 5a: Educate local citizens as to transportation services available 
through advertising, seminars, workshops and participation in local clinics and events. 

Goal VI: Ensure the provision of accessible 24-hour, seven days a week transportation 
disadvantaged service. 

Act ion Objective 6a: CTC will implement an accessible system for individuals to 
request after-hour service and on weekends. Board to review on a semi-annual basis. 

Goal VII: Use the Transportation Disadvantaged Trust Fund allocation to the maximum extent. 

Action Objective 7a: The CTC and Local Coordinating Board will determine the 
most effective and efficient manner to expend these funds. 

Action Objective 7b: The CTC will advise the Local Coordinating Board of any 

C 
d ~ c u l t i e s  experienced concerning the expenditures of non-sponsored funds. 

Action Objective 7c: The CTC will ensure a Public Hearing is held annually in 
conjunction with a Taylor County Board of County Commissioners meeting informing the 
County Commission and general public of the annual trust fund allocation and expenditures. 

Goal Vm: The CTC will comply will all reporting requirements of the Commission for the 
Transportation Disadvantaged, the Local Coordinating Board and the Board of County 
Commissioners. 

Action Objective 8a: The CTC will complete all reports that require the Local 
Coordinating Board's review andlor approval. 

Action Objective 8b: The CTC will complete all reports requested by the Local 
Coordinating Board. The CTC will be given a minimum of two weeks notice prior to report due 
date. 

Action Objective 8c: The CTC to include reports to be reviewed in Local 
Coordinating Board member meeting packets with the tentative agenda for the upcoming board 
meeting. 

Goal IX: Improve the quality of senice provided by the CTC and designated transportation 
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QUALITY ASSURANCE 

A. Service Standards 

Service standards are inte.gral to the development and implementation of a quality transportation program 
and are intended to bring about uniform service provision in the coordinated system. The LC6 will 
evaluate the CTC's compliance with the established service standards annually. The LC6 will accept any 
agency's review of the CTC, which encompasses any of the standards as part of the evaluation to 
determine compliance with that standard. 

Commission for the Transmrtation Disadvantaaed Service Standards 

The CTC and any Transportation Operator from whom service is purchased or arranged by the CTC shall 
adhere to commission approved standards. These standards, as outlined in Rule 41-2.006(4), Florida 
Administrative Code, include: 

Dmg and Alcohol Testing 
All safety sensitive job position shall comply with the pre-employment, random, post-accident, and 
reasonable suspicion testing requirements of the Federal Transit Administration. 

Transport of Escorts and Dependent Children 
Children under age 6 shall be required to be accompanied by an escort or attend fo by an 
attendant. Escorts must be provided by a passenger. The escorts must be able to provide the 
necessary assistance to the passenger. Escorts shall be transported at the regular rate. 

Use, Responsibility and Cost of Child Restraint Devices 
All passengers under the age of 4 andlor under 50 pounds shall be advised to use a child restraint 
device. This device shall be provided by the passenger. 

Passenger Property 
Passengers shall be allowed to have two pieces of personal property, which they can place in their 
lap or stow under the seat. Passengers must be able to independently cany all items brougM 
onto the vehicle. Drivers shall not be allowed to carry packages, other than on and off the vehicle. 
Passenger property does not include wheelchairs, child restraint seats, stretchers, secured 
oxygen, personal assistive devices, or intravenous devices. 

Vehicle Transfer Points 
Vehicle transfer points shall be located in a safe and secure place that provides shelter. 

Local Toll Free Telephone Number 
A local toll free telephone number shall be posted in all vehicles within the transportation system. 
This telephone number shall be included in the complaint process. 

Out-of-Service Area Trips 
Out-of-service area trips refer to inter-county trips. Minimum practices for inter-county service will 
be published in the Section A.1 .b. of the II. Service Plan. 
-- - -  

Vehicle Cleanliness - 

Interior of all vehicles shall be free of dirt, grime, oil, trash, tom upholstery, damaged or broken 
seats, protruding metal or other objects or materials which would soil items placed in the vehicle or 
provide discomfort for the passenger. All vehicles shall be cleaned (interior and exterior) on a 
regular schedule. 

Billing Requirements 
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The CTC shall pay all bills to transportation subcontractors within 15 days afler receipt of said 
payment by the CTC. 

10. Passenger I Trip Database 
The CTC shall collect the name, telephone number, address, funding source(s) eligibility and 
special requirements in a database on each passenger. 

11. Adequate Seating 
Vehicle seating shall not exceed the manufacturer's recommended capacity. 

12. Driver Identification 
Drivers shall be required to announce and identify themselves by name and company in a manner 
that is conducive to communications with the specific passenger upon pickup except in situations 
where the driver regularly transports the rider on a regular basis.' All drivers shall have a name 
badge displayed at all times when transporting passengers. 

1'3. Passenger (Boarding) Assistance 
All drivers shall assist all passengers on and off the vehicles, if necessary or requested, to the 
seating portion of the vehicle. This assistance shall include: opening the vehicle door, fastening 
the seat bell or wheelchair securement devices, storage of'mobility devices and closing the door. 
Assistance must be in a dignified manner. Drivers may not assist wheelchairs up or down more 
than one step. 

14. Smoking, Eating, and Drinking 
There shall be no snloking on any vehicle in the transportation system. Eating and drinking on 
board the vehicle will not be allowed. Stops may be made to accommodate the needs of the 
passengers at the discretion of the driver. 

15. Passenger No-Shows 
Passenger no-shows are defined as trips not canceled prior to dispatch of the vehicle. When a 
passenger is considered a no-show, they shall be notified. Upon the third no-show in a 60-day 
period, the rider will be suspended for 30 days. 

16. Two-Way Communications 
All vehicles shall have two-way radio or cellular phones in good working order and be audible to 
the driver at all times (when in the service area) to the base. 

17. Air Conditioning / Heating 
All vehicles in the coordinated system shall have working air conditioning and heating. Vehicles 
that do not have a working air conditioner or heater shall be scheduled for repair or replacement 
as soon as possible. 

18. Cardio-Pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Training 
All drivers shall.be certified in CPR. 

19. First Aid Training 
All drivers shall be certified in First Aid. 

bocal Service standards 

1. Driver Criminal Background Screening 
All drivers in the coordinating system must have a favorable FDLE background screening. 

2. Service Effectiveness 



TAYLOR COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED SERVICE PLAN 

Service effediveness shall be evaluated based on the following information; percentage of TO 
passengers transported, passenger trips 1 vehicle mile, cost I vehicle mile, cost I passenger trip, 
vehicle miles, I passenger trip, and a customer satisfaction survey. 

Contrad Monitoring 
The CTC shall perform annual evaluations of contracted operators using applicable portions of the 
LCB evaluation process.. 

Pick-up Window 
There is a ninety (90) minute pick-up window in place for all intra-county trips scheduled based on 
the arrival I departure time of the passenger. 

On-time Performance 
The CTC shall have an 85% on-time performance for all completed trips. 

Advance Reservation Requirement 
There shall be a 24-hour notice requirement for all trips scheduled within the coordinated system. 
except under special circumstances. 

Accidents 
1.2 accidents per 100,000 miles shall be the maximum allowable number of accidents for the 
evaluation period. 

Roadcalls 
There should be no less than 10,000 miles between each roadcall. 

Telephone Access 
95% of all in-coming calls will be completed. 

Complaints 
There should be no more than three (3) complaints per 1,000 trips during the evaluation period. 



GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES 2009-2010 
LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD 

FOR THE TRANSPRTATION DISADVANTAGED 
Taylor County Board of Commissioners 

The Taylor County Local Coordinating Board for the Transportation Disadvantaged serving to 
assist the Community Transportation Coordinator, has established the following procedures and 
policies for the Board Grievance Committee to address grievance or complaints from agencies, 
users, potential users, subcontractors, and other interested parties. 

I. Purpose of Grievance Committee 

According to Rule 41-2.012 of the Florida Administrative Code (FAC), one duty of the Local 
Coordinating Board is to: 

"Appoint a Grievance Committee to serve as a mediator to process, and investigate 
complaints from agencies, users, potential users of the system and the Community 
Transportation Coordinator in the designated service area, and recommendations to the 
Coordinating Board for the improvement of service. The Coordinating Board shall establish 
procedures to provide regular opportunities for issues to be brought before such committee and 
address them in a timely manner. Members appointed to the committee shall be members of the 
Coordinating Board." 

It should be noted that there is a distinct difference between "hearing" a grievance and "hearing 
and determining" a grievance. Neither the Grievance Committee nor the Local Coordinating 
Board has the authority to "hear and determine" a grievance. They only have the authority to 
"hear" and advise. 

When an entity make a determination of the rights, duties, privileges, benefits, or legal 
relationships of a specific person or persons, it is exercising adjudicative powers. Deciding a 
grievance between two independent parties may fall within these parameters depending on the 
nature of the grievance. Chapter 427, Florida Statutes grants no adjudicative powers to anyone 
on the Grievance Committee or the Local Coordinating Board. Even though the Local 
Coordinating Board does not have determining powers, the recognition of problems by the 
various members of the Local Coordinating Board is a very useful tool to resolve many issues. 
In addition, it should be noted that the Local Coordinating Board is involved in the development 
and approval of the Community Transportation Coordinator's Service Plan, and the annual 
evaluation of the Community Transportation Coordinator. This allows the Local Coordinating 
Board to influence changes as so needed. 

11 Definition of Service Complaint 

Service complaints are routing incidents that occur on a daily basis and reported to the driver or 
dispatcher, or other individuals involved in the daily operations. These complaints are resolved 
within the course of a reasonable time period suitable to the complainant. 



All service complaints should be recorded and a summary of complaints should be provided by 
the Community Transportation Coordinator on a quarterly basis to the Taylor County Local 
Coordinating Board. If the Community Transportation Coordinator is also an operator, their 
statistics on service complaints should be included. 

Service complaints may include but not be limited to: 
*Late trips (late pick up andlor drop off) 
*No-show by transportation operator 
*No show by rider 
*Driver behavior 
*Rider behavior 
*Passenger comfort/discomfort 
*Service Denial (refused service without an explanation of why) 
*Unsafe Driving 

111. Definition of Formal Grievances 

A formal grievance is a written complaint to document any concerns regarding the operation or 
administration of Transportation Disadvantaged services by the Transportation Operator, the 
Community Transportation Coordinator, the designated Planning Agency, or the Local 
Coordinating Board. A formal grievance may also be a service complaint that has been left 
unresolved for more than 45 days. 

Formal grievance processes by the Taylor County Local Coordinating Board or the Community 
Transportation Coordinator shall be open to addressing concerns by any person or agency 
including but not limited to: purchasing agencies, users, potential users, private-for-profit 
operators, private-nonprofit operators, Community Transportation Coordinators, Designated 
Official Planning Agencies, elected officials, and drivers. The grievant, in their formal 
complaint, should establish and state their concern as clearly as possible. 

Formal grievances may include but not be limited to: 

*Chronic, recurring, or unresolved Service Complaints (Note descriptions in Item 11) 
*Violations of specific laws governing the provisions of the Transportation Disadvantaged 
services outlined in Chapter 427 Florida Statutes, Rule 4 1-2 Florida Administrative Code and 
accompanying documents, Florida Sunshine Laws, and the American with Disabilities Act. 
*Contract disputes (agencies and operators) 
*Coordination disputes 
*Bidding disputes 
*Agency compliance 
*Conflicts of interest 
*Misuse of funds 
*Billing andlor accounting procedures 



IV. Composition of Grievance Committee 

The Taylor County Local Coordinating Board shall appoint at least three (3) of its voting 
members to a Grievance Committee. The Grievance Committee shall elect a Chair and Vice- 
Chair. Term limits of the Grievance Committee will coincide with the term limits on the Local 
Coordinating Board. A majority vote is required for actions made by the Grievance Committee. 

V. Grievance Committee Procedures 

The Taylor County Local Coordinating Board must make a written copy of their grievance 
procedures available to anyone upon request and in a format accessible to persons with 
disabilities. The following procedures are established to provide regular opportunities for 
grievances to be brought before the Grievance Committee. 

a. Filing a Grievance with the Local Coordinating Board 

Should an interested party wish to file a grievance with the Taylor County Local 
Coordinating Board that grievance must be filed in writing with the Grievance 
Committee within ninety (90) days after the occurrence of the event giving rise to 
the grievance. The grievance shall be sent to: 

Transportation Disadvantaged Program 
Coordinating Board Grievance Committee 
Taylor County Administrative Complex 
20 1 E. Green Street 
Perry, Florida 32347 
Attn: Melody Cox 

If there are questions on how to file a grievance, the contact for the Taylor County 
Local Coordinating Board is Melody Cox, Planning Grant Manager. Cox may be 
reached at 850-838-3553 grantscoordinator~,ta~lorcount~~ov.com. 

When necessary, county staff involved in the Transportation Disadvantaged 
program will provide technical assistance to disabled individuals to prepare 
written grievances. The grievance should demonstrate or establish a clear 
violation of a specific law, regulation, or contractual agreement. Copies of 
pertinent laws and regulations should also be included. 

1. Name and address of complainant 
2. Statement of the grounds for the grievance and support documentation. 

Statement should be clear and concise. 
3. Explanation from the complainant of the improvements needed to 

address the complaint. 



If the Taylor County Local Coordinating Board receives a grievance pertaining to 
the operation of services under the Community Transportation Coordinator, that 
grievance should be passed on to the Community Transportation Coordinator for 
their response to be included in the Local Coordinating Board's response. 

b. Grievance Committee Meeting Schedule 

Within fifteen (1 5) working days following the date of the receipt of the formal 
grievance, county staff shall advise the Grievance Committee of the grievance, 
schedule a grievance hearing, and inform the complainant of the hearing date. 
The Grievance Committee shall meet to hear the grievance within forty-five (45) 
days from the date of receipt of the grievance. When appropriate, the Grievance 
Committee may meet to hear filed grievances immediately following regularly 
scheduled Local Coordinating Board meetings. In addition, a regular business 
meeting of the Grievance Committee may be called when so needed. 

c. Notice of Hearing 

Appropriate staff shall send a notice of the Grievance Committee's scheduled 
hearing in writing to the local newspaper with the greatest circulation, the 
complainant, and other interested parties. Mailing shall be by certified mail. The 
notice shall clearly state: 

i. Date, time and location of meeting 
ii. Statement of the issue involved and purpose of the discussion 

d. Grievance Committee Hearing Procedures 

All involved parties have a right to present their views to the Grievance 
Committee, either orally or in writing. In addition, all parties may present 
evidence. The Grievance Committee may at any time during the course of the 
hearing question the parties and their witnesses on any facts which deems material 
to the alleged improper action. The entire hearing shall be recorded electronically 
on tape. Any party requesting a copy of the transcription shall pay all costs 
incurred in finishing the copy of the transcription 

The Grievance Committee will follow a meeting agenda in accordance with the 
procedures herein set forth: 

1. Call to order 
2. Presentation of Grievance 

a. Presentation of grievance by Complainant which shall include 
witnesses if so applicable. 

b. Response of concerned parties and witnesses if applicable. 
3. Discussion of grievance, which shall take place in accordance with 
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4. Robert's Rules of Order. The discussion shall be among the Grievance 
Committee, staff, the complainant, and other pertinent parties. Discussion 
shall focus solely on the grievance as filed by the complainant. 

5. Adjourn Hearing 

e. Report to Coordinating Board 

A written report shall be provided to the Taylor County Local Coordinating 
Board and shall include the following information: 

i. A statement that a meeting was held in which the involved parties, 
their representatives and witnesses were given a opportunity to present 
their grievance. 

ii. A Statement that clearly defines the issues discussed. 
iii. The recommendation or explanation of the Grievance Committee 

based on their investigation and assessment. 

A Copy of this report shall be provided to the concerned parties within ten (10) 
working days after the hearing on the grievance and no more than sixty (60) 
calendar says fiom the date of receipt of the formal grievance. The Grievance 
Committee's recommendation will stand unless the recommendation is changed 
by the Taylor County Local Coordinating Board through the appeals process. 

VI. Appeals 

a. Appeal to the Local Coordinating Board 

Appeal of the recommendation by the Grievance Committee to the Taylor County 
Local Coordinating Board shall be made within twenty (20) working days from 
the date when the Grievance Committee makes a recommendation regarding a 
grievance. The appeal shall be mailed to: 

Transportation Disadvantaged Program 
Taylor County Administrative Complex 
201 E. Green Street 
Perry, Florida 32347 

Attn: Melody Cox/Grievance Appeal 

The complaint will be notified in writing of the date, time, and place of the Taylor 
County Local Coordinating Board meeting where the appeal will be heard. This 
written notice will be mailed at least ten (10) days in advance of the meeting. The 
Taylor County Local Coordinating Board will meet to hear the appeal and provide 
recommendations within thirty (30) days of the date the appeal was filed. A 
written copy of the recommendation will be mailed to all parties involved within 
ten (1 0) days of the date of the recommendation. 



b. Appeal to the Transportation Disadvantaged Commission 

Should a complainant remain dissatisfied with the Taylor County Local 
Coordinating Board or the Community Transportation Coordinator's 
recommendation, he or she may contact the Transportation Disadvantaged 
Commission at the following address: 

Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged 
605 Suwannee Street, MS-49 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399 

Attn: Grievance Appeal 

Chapter 427, Florida Statutes, does not expressly confer the power or authority for 
the Transportation Disadvantaged Commission to hear and determine a grievance. 
The Transportation Disadvantaged Commission may chose to listen to grievance 
and it can investigate them from a fact finding prospective. It cannot be the 
"judge" or be the "arbiter" of the grievance in the sense of determining that one 
party's version of the facts is right and the other is wrong, and order the wrong 
party to compensate the right party. On the other hand, the grievance may bring 
to light problems within the transportation disadvantaged system. If the grievance 
showed that one of the parties with whom the Transportation Disadvantaged 
Commission contracts was acting so aberrantly as to not be in compliance with 
their contract, the Commission could exercise whatever contractual rights it has to 
correct the problem. The Transportation Disadvantaged Commission may take 
part in the grievance process but may not decide the grievance where doing so 
would. amount to an exercise of adjudicative powers. 

VII. Filing Grievances with the Community Transportation Coordinator 

When appropriate, an interested party may also file a grievance with the 
Community Transportation Coordinator. Such grievances shall be for an issue 
which can be addressed by the Community Transportation Coordinator and shall 
be executed in accordance with the Community Transportation Coordinator's 
grievance procedures. 

The Community Transportation Coordinator's Service Plan must be developed 
consistently with the Coordinated Transportation Contracting Instructions, 
incorporated by reference in Rule 41-2.00.0(27), F.A. pursuant to these 
instructions, the Operations Element must contain at a minimum, the step-by-step 
process the Community Transportation Coordinator uses to address "Service 
Complaints" and "Formal Grievances". The "Formal Grievance" part of this is 
intended to be the step-by-step which allows for hearing and determination 
procedures within the Community Transportation Coordinator's organization. 
The Service Plan will provide steps by which a formal written grievance can be 
heard and a determinative action can be taken. The Community Transportation 
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Coordinator's grievance procedure should ultimately end with the Board of 
Director's of the Community Transportation Coordinator, Board of County 
Commissioners, owner, or whomever is legally responsible for the actions of the 
Community Transportation Coordinator. 

The Community Transportation Coordinator and transportation subcontractors 
(including coordination contractors) must make a written copy of their grievance 
procedures and rider policies available to anyone upon request. 

The Community Transportation Coordinator and transportation contractors 
(including coordination contractors) must post the contract number and telephone 
number for access to information regarding reporting service complaints or filing 
a formal grievance in each of their service vehicles in plain and open view of 
riders. 

The Community Transportation Coordinator's grievance procedure should state 
that all grievances filed must be written and contain the following 

Name and address of the complainant 
A clear and concise statement of the grounds for the 
grievance and supporting documentation 
An statement indicating the relief desired by the 
complaint. 

The Community Transportation Coordinator must respond within fifteen (1 5) 
working days to the Grievant in writing noting the date of receipt and the date by 
which a decision will be made. The Community Transportation Coordinator will 
render a decision n writing, giving the complaint an explanation of the facts that 
lead to the Community Transportation Coordinator's decision and provide a 
method or way(s) to bring about a resolution. 

All documents pertaining to the grievance process will be made available, upon 
request, in a format accessible to persons with disabilities. The Board of 
Directors, owners, Board of Commissioners, or whoever is legally responsible 
must receive a copy of the grievance and the response. 

VIII. Prohibition Against Retaliation 

No individual shall unlawfully be denied transportation disadvantaged services 
because such individual has filed a grievance related to the Transportation 
Disadvantaged Program or has testifies, or is about to testify in any such 
proceedings or investigation related to the Transportation Disadvantaged 
Program. 



IX. Alternative Recourse 

Apart fiom these grievance processes, aggrieved parties may also have recourse 
through the Chapter 120, Florida Statutes administrative process or the judicial 
system. 

* Taylor County Local Coordinating Board for the Transportation Disadvantaged is 
appointed by the Taylor County Board of County Commissioners 

* The Community Transportation Coordinator is Big Bend Transit, Inc. 



C C. EVALUATION PROCESS 

This section will provide information on the evaluation processes utilized in Taylor 
County to ensure quahty of service is being obtained and that it is being provided in th6 
most cost effective, efficient, and unduplicated manner . The most recent evaluation of 
the CTC is found in Appendix B. 

1. CTC Evaluation Process 

Annually the Transportation Disadvantaged Local Coordinating Board evaluates the 
Community Transportation Coordinator to ensure quality of service is being obtained and 
that it is being provided in the most effective, efficient, unduplicated and mfiqgmmted 
manner. After the evaluation, the Transportation Local Coordinating Board makes a 
recommendation to the Plammg Agency. The Planning Agency reviews the evaluation 
of the Local Coordinating Board and recommends to the Commission for the 
Transportation Disadvantaged the designation of the Community Transportation 
Coordinator and forwards copies of al l  review documents for Commission consideration 
and approval. 

The evaluation of the Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) is conducted 
utrlizm@, the Commission for the Transportation Evaluation Workbook for Community 
Transportation Coordinator and providers in Florida. At a minimum, the following 

C 
modules will be used: 

Worksheet 5 Competition 
Worksheet 7 thru 9 Cost Effectiveness and Efficiency* 
Worksheet 12 Availability 

*Worksheets 7 thru 9 must be provided as part of the CostCRevenue 
Allocation and Rate Structure Justification Element 

In addition to the required modules, surveys will be conducted with passengers and 
purchasing agencies as to the quality of service provided by the CTC. Commission 
standards and local standards will be examined for compliance, as well as the goals and 
objectives incorporated in this service plan, The Americans with Disabilities Act 
Compliance Checklist will also be used to determine compliance 

2. CTC Monitoring Procedures of Operation and Coordination 
Contractors 

CTC's are responsible for evaluation of their operators and coordination contractors to 
ensure contractual compliance. The evaluation is done on a periodic basis depending on 
the needs and requirements of the CTC. A comprehensive annual evaluation is 

C completed to ensure compliance with the System Safety Program Plan, locally approved 





Big Bend Transit, Inc. - 
P.O. Box 1721 

A U ~ U S ~  30, 2011 Tallahassee, Florida 32302 
8501574-6266 

TO : Melody Cox 
Taylor County Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board 
Courthouse Annex 
201 East Green Street 
Perry, Florida 32347 

B 
FROM: Ted W a t e r s ~ d d .  

RE : Taylor County Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan (TDSP) 

.......................................................................... 
9 

Enclosed please find information for the referenced TDSP Update: 

* Section 11, Service Plan, Section B., Cost/Revenue Allocation and 
Rate Structure Justification. 

If you have any questions or need additional information, please call. 

enclosure 



June 1, 2 0 1 1  

Big Bend Transit, Inc. 
P.O. Box 1721 

Tallahassee, Florida 32302 
8501574-6266 

Mr. Robert Craig 
Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged 
605 Suwannee Street, M.S.-49 
Tallahassee, Florida 3 2 3 9 9 - 0 4 5 0  

Re: Taylor County Coordinated Transportation System 
Rate Revision Applicable to TDTF Trips 

Dear Mr. Craig: 

As directed, a rate revision for the TDTF (Non-Sponsored) service of 
the Taylor County Coordinated Transportation System is presented. By 
copy of this correspcndence the rate revision is submitted to the 
Taylor County Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board. 

For your information and use in considering the rate revision, the 
rate model worksheets establishing and justifying the revised rates 
are enclosed. 

Your approval of the rate revision for the TDTF (yon-Sponsored) 
service of the Taylor County Coordinated Transportation System is 
requested. 

Flease call me if you have questions or need additional infcrmation. 

sincerely, 

BIG BEND TRANSIT, INC. 

181 DC 
Ted Waters 
General Manager 

enclosures 

J cc: Ms. Melody Cox, Taylor County Transportation Disadvantaged 
Coordinating Board . 



June 1, 2011 

Big Bend Transit, Inc. 
P.O. Box 1721 

Tallahassee, Florida 32302 
8501574-6266 

Mr. Robert Craig 
Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged 
605 Suwannee Street, M.S.-49 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450 

Re: Taylor County Coordinated Transportation System 
Rate Revision Applicable to TDTF Trips 

Dear Mr. Craig: 

As directed, a rate revision for the TDTF  on-sponsored) service of 
the Taylor County Coordinated Transportation System is presented. By 
copy of this correspondence the rate revision is submitted to the 
Taylor County Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board. 

For ycur information and use in considering the rate revision, the 
rate model worksheets establishing and justifying the revised rates 
are enclosed. 

Your approval of the rate revision for the TDTF (?ion-sponsored) 
service of the Taylor County Coordinated Transportation System is 
requested. 

Flease call me if you have questions or need additional information. 

Sincerely, 

BIG BEND TRANSIT, INC. 

' ~ a  b-1- 
Ted Waters 
General Manager 

encl osures 

J cc: Ms. Melody Cox, Taylor County Transportation Disadvantaged 
Coordinating Board . 

7001,7040(04) 
h: ctdrate 
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QAPE/LCB 

CTC EVALUATION 
FLORIDA COMMISSION FOR THE 

Trans ortation 
Disa 8 vantaged 

WORKBOOK 

CTCBEINGREVIEWED: Big B e n d  Transit, Inc. 

COUNTY: T a y l n r  TYPEOFREVIEW: ~ ~ ~ , ~ , - l  

ADDRESS: PQ B ~ l ~ a l l n h a n a o ~ ;  P T .  1 7 2 9 7  

CONTACT: T e d  Waters PHONE: 851-1 - 574  - 6766 

EMAIL: TWBl3T@AOL.COM R E V I E W D A T E S : ~ - , ~ ~ / B  . - -  

PERSON CONDUCTING THE REVIEW: T.i .a. a n u s ,  ? , L A  x-ccr ,  CI iff  alter 

CONTACT INFORMATION: ~a i nityr  P ~ V  
Maxie Young and Melody Cox 

L~~~~ COORDINATI~G BOARD: Taylor County Local Coordinating Board 



TAYLOR COUNTY BCC PAGE 02 

5. NAME THE GROUPS THAT YOUR COMPANY HAS COORDINATION 
COWACTS WITH: 

Not A p p l i c a b l e  

6. NAMETHEORGANIZATIONSANDAGENCESTHATPURCHASESERVICE 
FROM THE CTC AMP THE PERCENTAGE OF TRIPS EACH REPRESEHIT? 
(Recent APR information may be used) 

7. R E m W  AND DECWS TD HELPLINE 'CALLS: None r e c e i v e d  by CTC 

Name of Agency 

S.N.A.P. 850-838-2503 

a d  nps 

21.8  

Even  S t a r t  850-838-9372 

CTD - TDTF 21.8 K a r e n  S o m e r s e t  850-410-5700 

Cmt 
Medicaid 
Quality of S ewfce 
' S kMce AVaWabSility 
' Tolf Permit 
Ocher 

3 
C0t.n i c G. , , l .c . l  
Ld&Uk@qe 

CTD - M e d i c i a d  

Number of calk Closed Cases Unsofved Cares 

33.8 Byron  Underwood 850-410-5700 



06/16/2005 21:33 8508383501 TAYLOR COUNTY BCC PAGE 03 

I GENERAL QUESTIONS --... . I 
l k e  the TDS P to answer the following questibm. h these are mot addressed in die 
T D S  P, foUowup with the CTC, 

2. M f ~ T  E THE COmLAINT PROCESS? p e r  TDSP, enc losed  

IS THE PROCESS IN W R m N  FORM Yes 0 No 
(Ma.ke a copy and include in folder) 
LE rhe process being used? 9: Yes a No 

3. DOES THE CTC HAVE A COMPLAINT f CRW Y s  Yes 0 No 
(Make a copy and hclude in folder) 

4. DOES THE COMPLAM FORM INCORPORATE ALL ELEMNT5 OF THE 
CTDrS UNIFORMSERVICE REPORTING GUIDEBOW 
xm Y D No 

5, DOES THE FORM HAVE ASECTION F O R  RESOLUTION Of THE 
COMPLAINTI 

Y No 

Review completed complaint forms to ensure the resolution section is being filled 
out and follow-up is provided to the consumer. 

6. IS AS U W Y  Of COWLAINTS GIVEN TO THE LCB ON A REGULAR 
BAS IS? 

x Yes 0 No 

7. WHEN 6 THE PESATlSFED PARTY REFERRED TO THE TD HELPLINE? 
- n o t i c e  .on v e h i c l e s  
- TD S e r v i c e s  i n f o r m a t i o n  b rochure  

8. WHEN A COMPLAINT B 'F6RWAR~ED TO YOUR OFFICE FROM THE 
OMBUDSMAN PROGRAM, LT THE COMPLAINT ENlTRED INTO THE LOCAL 
COMPLAINT FILERRCKESS? 

Yes C;I No 

If no, what M dm% with the compbine 

9. DOES THE CTC PROVlDE W R m N  RIDER INFORMATION OR BROCHURES 
TO INF QRM Ft IPERS ABOUT 7D S ERWCES? 

X G F  Yes a No 

If Yes, what type? copy ene losed  



06/16/2005 21:33 8508383501 TAYLOR COUNTY BCC PAGE 04 

10. DOES THE RIDER INFORElATION OR BROCHURE CBT THE OMBUDSECAN 
NUMBER? 

XQ Yes No 

11. DOlES THE RIDER I'NFORMATION OR BROCHURE LET THE COMPLAINT 
PROCE PURE 
a Yes 0 No 

12. WHAT IE YOUR ELIGIBLITY PROCESS FOR Tb RIDERS? by a p p l i c a t i o n  (enclosed) 
- a p p l i c a n t ' s  need q u a l i f y  i n  only one (1) c r i t e r i a  - age ,  mental  

d i . s a b i l i t y ,  p h y s i c a l  d i s a b i l i t y ,  income 

PIease Verify These TD Passengers Have an EIEgibility Application on File: 

i 3. WHAT INNOVATIVE IDEAS HAVE YOU IMPLEMeNTED IN YOUR 
COORDINATED SYSTE110 
u t i l i z e  t r a n s p o r t a t i o n  p rov ide r s  from a d j a c e n t  c o u n t i e s  t o  accomplish some 
in te r -county  t r i p s  

14. ARETHEREANY AREAS WHERE CClORDINATIONCANBE IMPROVED? 

Application on 
File? 

TD Eligibiiity Verification 

See Recommendations 

15, WHAT BARRIERS ARE THERE TO THE COORDINATED SmTEI*e f i n a n c i a l  

Date of Ride Name of Client 

16. A R E  THERE ANY A R M  THAT YOU FEEL THE COMMlSS ION SHOULD BE 
AWARE @ a CAN M$BTWm)I? develop s t anda rd  r a t e ( s )  and r a t e  s t ruccurc . ( s )  

Address of client 

17. WHAT FUNDING AGENCIES DOES THE CTD NEED 7'0 WORK ClQdELY WITH 
IN ORDER TO FACILITATE A BETf%R<OORPINATEb SYSTEPIP 

A P D ,  Devel opn~cntul  J ) i s a b i l i t  i e s  Program 

la .  HOW ARE YOU MARKETJNG THE VOLUNTARY DOLLAR? 



. 06/16/2005 21: 33 8508383501 TAYLOR COUNTY BCC PAGE 05 

C - '  ; 
Fiidimgs : 

The review committee and the LCB discussed the 
complaint procedure and discussed both parties 
making changes to incorporate grievance procedures 
for medicaid transportation clients with general - .  
n r :  evance ~rocedures. - 

Recommendations: 
Big Bend Transit and the LCB per the recommendation of 
the review committee will look into ways to fund a progr 
to transport Taylor county individuals who wish to go 
to the Children and Family Services office in Madison 
as Taylor county no longer has an office and this has 
had a very negative impact on many of our citizens. 



COMPLIANCE WITH CHAPTER 427, FS. I 
LW Review the CTCs contracb for compliance with 427.01 55(1), F.S. 
Zxecute uniform contracts for service using a standard contract, which includes performance 
standards for operators. " 

ARE YOUR COWRAC'IS UNIFORM? Yes 0 No 

IS THE CTDJS STANDARD CONTRACT UTILIZED? a Yes a No 

DO THE CONTRACTS INCLUDE PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR THE 
TRAMPORTATION OPERATORS AND COORDI?WTION CONTRACTORS? 

m Yes 0 No 

DO THE CONTRACTS INCLUDE THE PROPER LANGUAGE CONCERNING 
PAYMENT TO S UBCONTRACTORS? (Section 2 1.20: Payment to Subcontractors, 
TszE Grant, and FY) 

Yes 0 No 

IS THE CTC IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECTION? Yes No 

Operator Name 

Not Applicable at 
'rlrne. 
No outside contractors. 

Exp.Date 

';his 

SSPP AOR Reporting Insurance 
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w Review the CTC3 maniwtirlg OF its cdntrYatted operaterr in compliance with 
427.01 55(3)* 
'Revfew all transportation operator contracts annually. ' 

WHAT TYPE Of MONrI'ORMG DOES THE CTC PERFORM ON JTS OPERATOR6 ) 
AND HOW OFTEN E IT CONDUCTED? a n n u a l l y ,  a t  c o n t r a c t  renewal. 

- m o n i t o r i n g  t o o l  enc losed  

k a written report hued to the aperator? Q$x Yes a No 

If NO, haw are the conmctom notEWed of the results of the monitoring? 

WHAT TYPE M MONrrORJNG DOES THE CTC PERFORM ON I T S  COORblNATION 
CONTRACTORS AND HOW OFTEN B IT CONPUCTE b? 

Not A p p l i c a b l e  

k a wdtten report issued3 ' Yes No 

If NO, how an a e  contractors rroa'fied of the results of the monitoring? 

WHAT ACTION 6 TAKEN lF A CONiXACTOR RECEIVES AN UNFAVORABLE 
REPMZI? no c o n t r a c t  r enewal  

IS THE Ct% IN COMP LlANCE WRH THE S ECTJON? @ Yes 0 No 

[ASK - - TO SEE DOCUMB.NTATION OF MONITOR# G REP,O&TS. 



COMPLIANCE WITH CHAPTER 427, FJ. 

w Review the TDS P to determine the utilization of school buses and public 
transports tion senices [Chapter 427.01 55 (4)] 
"Approve and coordinate the utilization of school bus and public transportation services in 
accordance with the TDSP. " 

HOW tS THE CTC US CNG SCHOOL BUSES TN THE COORDINATED SYSTEM 
School buses are not used or needed at this time. 

Rule 41 -2.01 2(5 )@ 1: "As part of the Coordinator f performance, the local Coordinating. Board 
shall also set an annual percentage goal increase for the number of trips provided within the system 
for ridership on public transit, where applicable. In areas where the public transit is not being 
utilized, the local Coordinating Board shall set an annual percentage of the number of trips to be 
provided on public transit." 

HOW tS THE CTC US CNG PUBLIC TRAM PORTATION SERVICES IN THE 
COORDINATED SYSTEM 

IS THERE A GOAL.FOR TRAWFERRING PASSENGERS FROM PARATRAM IT T O  

El TRANS ll? Q Yes No 

I f  YES, what b the goal? 

ts the CTC accomplishing the goaP a Yes No 

IS THE CTC I'N COMPLLANCE WITH THE REQUiREMENI? Q Yes Q No 

Commenb : 

We do not have public transit 



I COMPLIANCE WITH CHAPTER 427, FS . 
E 
fun& (all local, state or federal funding for TD services ) for  compl'ince with 
427.01 55(5). 

IS THE CTC INVOLVED WITH THE REVIEW OF APPLICATIONS FOR TD FUNDS, I'N 
CONJ UNCTION WITH THE LCB? (TD Funds include all funding for transportation 
disadvantaged services, i.e. Section 53 10 [formerly S e c J  61 applications for FDOT 
funding to buy vehicles granted to agencies who arehre not coordinated) 
Q Yes IJ No 

! 

If Yes, desclfbe the applkadon review process. 

"Review all applications for local government, federal, and state transportation disadvantaged 
funds, and develop cost-effective coordination strategies." 

CTC prepares applicationsfor LCB review or participates 
in grant application preparation with LCB. 

If no, is the LCB currently reviewing applications for TD funds (any federal, 
sfate,and local funding)? Yes No 

If no, is the planning agency currently reviewing applications for TD 
funds? 
D yes 0 No 

IS THE CTC IN COMPLIANCE WITH THIS SECTION? Yes 0 No 

Commentr : 

The CTC and planninn arant coordinat,or wnrlc  c'loselv 
toge thar 
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I COMPLIANCE WITH CHAPTER 427, F J  . l 
a Emure CTCs compliance with the delivery of t~ampMaticrn services, 427.0'1 55 (8). 
Nave full respom'bility far the delivery af transpo~tadob services far the transportation 
disachfantaged as a~tlined in s, 427.01 5(2). 

Review the Operationdl section of the TDS P 

1. HOUE OfSedce: normal ly  6A - 10P;  24 h o u r s  on  demand 
Monday th rough  Sunday 

2. Hours of Intake: 
6A - 6P, Monday th rough  F r i d a y  

3. Provisions for Afar Houls Resewadom rCmcelbtionrl on an,,,rinl: device 

4. What & the minimum required notice far rwervadons? 
by 2 : 00 I'M, the clay bc.forc tlie 
day  of t r a v e l  

5. , How far in advance can msenntionr be place (number of days P , ,3, 

IS THE CTC IN COMPLLANCE WFTH THE SECTION? Y u  a No 



06/16/2005 21:33 8508383501 TAYLOR COUNTY BCC PAGE 08 

I COMPLIANCE WITH CHAPTER 427, FS . ' .  

- - . . . . . 

'm Review the cobpeta~e agreement with the h ~ l  WAGES coalidons according to' ' 
Chapter 427.01 55(9). 
Work cooperatively wlth local WAGES coalitions established in Chapter 41 4 to provide 
assistance in the development of innovative transporntion seMces for WAGES participants, 

WHAT W E  OF ARRANGE WNT DO YOU HAVE WnH THE LOCAL WAGES 
CO&mfO?@ . Purchase Order f o r  r e s e r v a t i o n  se rva t ion  s e r v i c e  a n d  pa r t i c ipa t ion  

i n  S h u t t l e  

HAVE ANY INNOVATWE WAGES TRAM PORTATION S ERWCES BEEN 
DEVELOPED? 

s e e  above 

I 

LS THE CTC IN COMPLIANCE.WITH THE SECTIOW Jg) Yes Cl No 





I COMPLIANCE WITH 41 -2, F.A.C. 

-Compliance with 41 -2.006(1), Minimum Insurance Compliance 
'...ensure compliance with the minimum liability insurance requirement of $1 00,000 per person 
and $200,000 per incident...' 

WHAT ARE THE MINIMUM LIABlLllY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS? 

$1OO1OOO/$300,000 C S L  

WHAT ARE THE MINIMUM LlABlLllY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS IN THE 
OPERATOR AND COORDINATION CONTRArnS? 

$100,000/$200,000 

HOW MUCH DOES THE INSURANCE COST (per operator)? 

DOES THE MINIMUM LlABlLllY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS EXCEED $1 
MILLION PER INCIDENT? 

O Yes D No 

If yes, was this approved by the Commission? Yes a No 

IS THE CTC IN COMPLIANCE WlTH THIS SECTION? bd Yes a No 

Comments: 

CTC exceeds standards 



COMPLLANCE WITH 41-2, F.A.C. 

-Compliance with Commission Standards 
"...shall adhere to Commission approved standards... " 

Review the TDS P for the Commission standards . 
Commission Standards 

Local toll free phone number must 
be posted in all vehicles. 

Vehicle Cleanliness 

Passengerflrip Database 

Adequate seating 

Dnver Identification 

Passenger Assistance 

Smoking, Eating and Drinking 

Comments 

In compliance 

Vehicle was very clean upon review. 

In compliance 

Adequate seating and storage space 

In compliance 

Three trips were taken. First trip 
no assistance was provided. Second 
and third trip service was excellent. 
Mr. Waters immediatelv addressed fir 
issue. 

In compliance 

In compliance. 





COMPLIANCE WITH 4 1 -2, F.A.C. 1 

.js.Compliance with Local Standards 
"...shall adhere to Commission approved standards... " 

Review the TDSP for the Local standards. 

Adheres to standards 

Adheres to standards 
child restraint devices 

Out-of-Service Area trips Adheres to standards 

Adheres to standards 

Driver Criminal Background 
Adheres to standards 

Rider Personal Property Adheres to standards 

Adheres to standards 

Pick-up Window 
Adheres to standards 



Big Bend Transit, Inc. 
P.0. Box 1721 

Tallahassee, Florida 32302 
904 / 574-6266 

Date Called In: Time Called In: 

Incident Called In By: - Telephone: 

Date Of Incident: Time Of Incident: 

h s  Complainant Wish To Be Notified Of Investigative Findings? 
Yes No 

Was Complainant Informed Tnat There Is Also A Grievance Process Available? 
Yes No 

Did Complainant Request A Copy Of Tne Grievance Policy? 
Yes No 

If Yes, Address sent To: - 

Nature Of Incident: 

----- Time 1 iness 
Vehicle Condition 
Vehicle Operation 
Other : 

-- LUtomer Service 
Poor Route Selection 
?kip Scheduling 

Incident : 

------, - --.--.--- ---- ---- --.---- 

inn -J den*, W : --,--_-.,,.,----...-,...- .-.-. .-- - .. . 



APPLICATION FORM 
TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED TRUST FUND 

Coordinated Transportation System of Taylor County 
(850) 584-5566 

I ~ ~ ~ l i c a n t ' s  Last Name First Name MI 

Street Address 

(- ) 
Ci ty Zip Code Telephone Number 

- - --------- - -1- -1- - 
Soclal Securlty Number Date of Birth 

(DESCRIPTION OF ELIGIBILITY STATUS (check all that apply) 

- Mobllity Aid required, i f  checked, which type? 

- Manual wheelchalr - Powered Wheelchair - Oversized/wlde/geri-chair 
- Can transfer into a regular passenger seat 

- Cane - Walker - Crutches 

Totally blind - Legally blind 
- Gulde dog 

- Totally deaf - Severely hearing impaired 

- Mental disabillty, If checked are you able to: 
Give your address and telephone number upon request? y e s  - no 
Deal wlth unexpected situations or changes in routine? -yes - no 
Ask  for, understand and follow instructions? y e s  n o  

Do y o u  or anyone who llves wlth you have a vehlcle? y e s  - no 

Can you afford to purchase transportatlon? y e s  - no 

Are you, ellglble for AFDC, food stamps or Medicaid? y e s  - no 

To travel, d o  you need a personal care escort? - always - sometlmes --- no 

Explain "always" or "sometimes" - -- 

S i g n a t u r e  o f  Applicant -- - 
(may be custsdlan, parent, guardian) 

b, k I  s o m p l a t e d  f o r m  t o :  B l g  Bend Transit, Inc. 
P o s t  Offlce Box 1721 
Tallahassee, Florlda 32302 



Big Bend Transit, Inc. 
P,O. Box 1721 

Tallahassee, Florida 32302 
904 1574-6266 

COMPLAINT/aOMMENDATION rn 

Mte Called In: Time Called In: - 
Incident Called In By: - Telephone: 

Date Of Incident: Time Of Incident: 

Does Complainant Wish To Be Notified Of Investigative Findings? 
Yes No 

Was Complainant Informed That There IsAlso A Grievance Process Available? 
Yes No 

Did Complainant Request A Copy Of 'fie Grievance Policy? 
Yes No 

If Yes, Address sent To: 

Nature Of Incident: 

--- 'l'lmel iness 
-- Vehicle Condition 

Vehicle Operation 
Other : 

-- C'ustomer Service 
Poor Route Selection 
Trip Scheduling 

Incident : 



March 16, 2010 

Big Bend Transit, Inc. - 
P.O. Box 1721 

Tallahassee, Florida 32302 
8501574-6266 

Mr. Bobby Jernigan, Executive Director 
Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged 
605 Suwannee Street, M.S.-49 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450 

Attn: Mr. Robert Craig 

Re: Big Bend Transit, Inc., Audit Report, September 30, 2009 

Dear Mr. Jernigan: 

Per the provisions of appropriate Paragraph or Section of certain 
Contract(s) and/or Agreement(s) between the Florida Commission for the 
Transportation Disadvantaged and Big Bend Transit, Inc., the Big Bend 
Transit, Inc. Audit Report for the period ending September 30, 2009 is 
submitted. 

Please call me if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

BIG BEND TRANSIT, INC. 

Ted Waters 
General Manager 

enclosure 

cc: Vanita Anderson, Apalachee Regional Planning Council, w/ enclosure 
Lynn Godfrey, North Central Florida Regional Planning Council, w/ 

enclosure 
J ~ e l o d ~  Cox, Taylor County Board of County Commissioners, w/ 

enclosure 



John N. Shannahan, I11 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT, LLC 

137 Palm Harbour Boulevard 
Panama City Beach, Florida 32408 

BIG BEND TRANSIT, INC. 
Audit Report 

September 30,2009 

Member of Florida Institute of CPAs and American Institute of CPAs 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of Big Bend Transit: 

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Big Bend Transit, Inc. (a nonprofit 
organization) as of September 30, 2009, and related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash 
flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of Big Bend Transit, Inc.'s 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe 
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In o w  opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Big Bend Transit, Inc. as of September 30, 2009, and the changes in its net assets and its cash 
flows for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 26,2010, 
on our consideration of Big Bend Transit, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of the audit. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fonning an opinion on the basic financial statements of Big Bend 
Transit, Inc. taken as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State 
Financial Assistance is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of 
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, 
and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the 

-auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, 
in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

John N. Shannahan, 111, CPA, LLC 
February 26,2010 



Big Bend Transit, Inc. 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

September 30,2009 

ASSETS 

Current Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Accounts Receivable 

Grants Receivable 

Inventory 

Prepaid Expenses 

Total Current Assets 

Investments 

Revenue Vehicles and Equipment: 
at cost, less accumulated 
depreciation of $2,547,529 

Total Assets 

See accompanying notes to these financial statements. 



Big Bend Transit, Inc. 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) 

September 30,2009 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Current Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable. 

Accrued Wages 

Accrued Leave 

Accrued Pension Liability 

Total Current Liabilities 

Net Assets: 

Unrestricted Net Assets: 

Designated 
Undesignated 

Total Net Assets 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 

See accompanying notes to these financial statements. 



Big Bend Transit, Inc. 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
September 30,2009 

Revenue: 

Customer Revenues 

Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance 

~nvestment Income 

Total Revenue 
Expenses: 

Operations 

Vehicle Maintenance 

General Administration 

Total Expenses 

Excess of Expenses Over Revenues 

Unrealized Gain on Investments 

Change in Unrestricted Net Assets 

Unrestricted Net Assets, September 30, 2008 

Unrestricted Net Assets, September 30,2009 

See accompanying notes to these financial statements. 
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Big Bend Transit, Inc. 
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
September 30,2009 

Functional Expenses: Operations Vehicle General Total 
Maintenance Administration Expenses 

Labor & Fringe Benefits 

Purchased Transportation 

Services 

Materials & Supplies 

Utilities 

Casualty & Liability Expense 

Bad Debt Expense 

Miscellaneous 

Rent Expense 

Depreciation 

Total Expenses $ - 3,175,033 $ 389,030 $ 681,219 $ 4,245,282 

See accompanying notes to these financial statements. 



Big Bend Transit, Inc. 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
September 30,2009 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities: 

Change in Net Assets 

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to 
cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation 
Decrease in accounts receivable and grants receivable 
Decrease in inventory 
Increase in prepaid expenses 
Decrease in accounts payable 
Decrease in accrued wages 
Increase in retirement funds payable 
Increase in accrued leave 
Unrealized gain on investments 

Total Adjustments 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities: 

Purchase of vehicles and equipment 
Purchase of investments 

Net Cash Provided From Investing Activities 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 

See accompanying notes to these financial statements. 
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Big Bend Transit, Inc. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30,2009 

Big Bend Transit is a non-profit corporation organized March 21, 1978 under Florida Statutes to 
provide transit services for the elderly, handicapped and other disadvantaged groups in Gadsden, 
Madison, Taylor, Jefferson and Leon Counties. 

(1) ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 

Basis o f  Accounting: The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the 
accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Financial Statement Presentation: Big Bend Transit has adopted Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 117, "Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations". 
Under SFAS No. 117, Big Bend Transit is required to report information regarding its 
financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, 
temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets. Big Bend Transit has 
classified all net assets as unrestricted. 

Investments: Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values are 
valued at their fair values in the statement of financial position. Realized and unrealized gains 
and losses are included in the statement of activities as changes in net assets. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include all monies in banks and petty 
cash. 

Inventory: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market using the first in, first out 
method. Inventory consists of spare parts and fuel. 

Revenue Vehicles and Eauipment: Big Bend Transit follows the practice of capitalizing 
all expenditures for fixed assets in excess of $500. Fixed assets are recorded at cost and 
depreciated over estimated useful lives of 2-7 years. Depreciation is computed using the 
straight-line method. Under the terms of grant agreements with the Florida Department 
of Transportation and the Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged, monies are 
received by Big Bend Transit and used to buy new vehicles. The new vehicles are titled to Big 
Bend Transit, subject to liens to the respective funding agencies until such time as the funding 
agencies no longer consider the vehicles serviceable. This title restriction does not limit Big 
Bend Transit's intended use of such vehicles in any way. 



Big Bend Transit, Inc. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

September 30,2009 

Summary of Revenue Vehicles and Equipment at September 30,2009: 

Revenue Vehicles $ 4,172,316 
Equipment 

Less Accumulated Depreciation 2,547,529 
Net Revenue Vehicles and Equipment $ 2,144,388 

Employee Annual and Sick Leave: Annual and sick pay are recognized on the accrual basis. 
Provision is made for all annual and sick time earned. 

Federal Income Tax Exemption: Big Bend Transit is exempt from federal income tax under 
Section 501(c)(3) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code except on unrelated business income and 
is not classified as a private foundation. Therefore, no provision for income taxes has been 
made in the financial statements. 

Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

(2) ACCOUNTS: 
Accounts receivable at September 30, 2009 are reported net of an allowance for doubtful 
accounts in the amount of $9,3 11. 

(3) INVESTMENTS: 
Investments are presented in the financial statements in aggregate at fair value. 
Summary of Investments at September 30,2009: 

Unrealized Investment 
Cost Fair Value Gain or <Loss> Income 

Investments 

(4) PETIRENfENT PLAN: 
Big Bend Transit contributes to a profit sharing plan to provide retirement benefits for all 
employees who have completed one year of service. Contributions to the plan are based on 
a percentage of the employees' salaries. The current year's pension cost was $96,425, which 
represents 5% of eligible employee's salaries. 



Big Bend Transit, Inc. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

September 30,2009 

(5) ITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES: 
The organization leases office buildings. All leases are operating leases with rights of 
ownership remaining with the lessor at the end of the lease term. The related future minimum 
lease payments are as follows: 

September 30, 2010 $2,800 
Total Future Minimum Lease Payments $2,800 

Several legal actions are pending and in process against Big Bend Transit in the ordinary 
course of business. It is not possible to state the ultimate liability, if any, in these matters. 
In management's opinion, the ultimate resolution of these actions will not have a material 
adverse effect on the financial position of Big Bend Transit. 

Government supported projects are 'subject to audit by the applicable government granting 
agencies. At September 30, 2009, there were no material obligations outstanding as the result 
of such audits and management believes that unaudited projects will not result in any material 
obligations. 

(6) NETASSETS: 
The organization has designated $349,929 of unrestricted net assets for the future purchase of 
revenue vehicles and equipment. 

(7) IONS OF CREDIT RISK: 
Big Bend Transit maintains bank accounts at three different banks. Accounts are insured by 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. Cash balances did not 
exceed Federally insured limits as of September 30,2009. 

During the year ended September 30, 2009, Big Bend Transit had two major customers and 
two major sources of financial assistance which accounted for 80% of customer revenue, 
100% of grants receivable and 92% of accounts receivable. Revenue from major customers 
and the two major sources of financial assistance totaled $4,494,365. 

(8) FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES: 
Expenses are charged directly to operations, vehicle maintenance or general administration 
categories based on specific identification. 



REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors of Big Bend Transit: 

We have audited the financial statements of Big Bend Transit, Inc. as of and for the year ended September 30 
2009, and have issued our report thereon dated February 26,2010. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Big Bend Transit, Inc.'s internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Big Bend 
Transit, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Organization's internal control over financial reporting. 

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on 
a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that 
adversely affects the organization's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data 
reliably in accordance with general accepted accounting principles, such that there is more than a remote 
likelihood that a misstatement of the organization's financial statements that is more than inconsequential will 
not be prevented or detected by the organization's internal control. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more 
than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or 
detected by the organization's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Big Bend Transit, Inc.'s financial statements are free 
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results 
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management, others 
within the organization, state and federal awarding agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used 
by anyone other than these specified parties. 

John N. Shannahan, 111, CPA, LLC 
February 26,20 10 



REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH 
MAJOR PROGRAM AND STATE PROJECT AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A- 133 

To the Board of Directors of Big Bend Transit: 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of Big Bend Transit with the types of compliance requirements described in 
the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement, and the 
requirements described in the Executive Office of the Governor's State Projects Compliance Supplement, that 
are applicable to each of its major federal programs and state projects for the year ended September 30, 2009. 
Big Bend Transit's major federal programs and state projects are identified in the Schedule of Findings and 
Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to 
each of its major federal programs and state projects is the responsibility of Big Bend Transit's management. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Big Bend Transit's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with United States generally accepted auditing standards; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations; and Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133, and 
Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General, require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program or state project occurred. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Big Bend Transit's compliance with those requirements and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on Big Bend 
Transit's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, Big Bend Transit complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above 
that are applicable to each of its major federal programs and state projects for the year ended September 30, 
2009. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of Big Bend Transit is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs 
and state projects. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Big Bend Transit's internal control 
over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program or 
state project in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular 
A-133 and Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Big Bend Transit's internal control over compliance. 

A control deficiency in an entity's internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program or 
state project on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control 
deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity's ability to administer a federal program such that there is more 
than a remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program or 
state project that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal 
control. 

11 



REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH 
MAJOR PROGRAM AND STATE PROJEa  AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-1 33 (CONTINUED) 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more 
than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program or state project will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management and specific 
legislative or regulatory bodies and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

John N. Shannahan, 111, CPA, LLC 
February 26,2010 



Big Bend Transit, Inc. 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

For The Year Ended September 30,2009 

TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION 

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Financial Assistance 
was prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 



Big Bend Transit, Inc. 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- 

FEDERAL PROGRAMS AND STATE PROJECTS 
September 30,2009 

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 

1. The auditor's report expresses an unqualified opinion on the general purpose financial 
statements of Big Bend Transit. 

2. There were no reportable conditions disclosed during the audit of the financial 
statements of Big Bend Transit. 

3. There were no instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Big Bend 
Transit disclosed during the audit. 

4. There were no reportable conditions relating to the audit of the major federal programs 
and state projects disclosed during the audit. 

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal programs and state projects 
for Big Bend Transit expresses an unqualified opinion. 

6. There were no audit findings or questioned costs relative to the major federal 
programs and state projects required to be reported under the Federal or Florida Single 
Audit Act, therefore no management letter is required. 

7. The programslprojects tested as major programs/projects included the following: 

Federal Program: Federal CFDA No. 

Department of Transportation 20.509, 20.5 13 

State Project: State CSFA No. 

Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged 55.001 

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and Type B programslprojects was $500,000 for 
major federal programs and 500,000 for major state projects. 

9. No summary schedule of prior audit findings is required because there were no prior audit 
findings related to federal programs or state projects 

10. No corrective action plan is required because there were no findings required to be 
reported under the Federal or Florida Single Audit Act. 



John N. Shannahan, I11 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT, LLC 

137 Palm Harbour Boulevard 
Panama City Beach, Florida 32408 

BIG BEND TRANSIT, INC. 
Audit Report 

September 30,2010 

Member of Florida Institute of CPAs and American Institute of CPAs 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of Big Bend Transit: 

have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Big Bend Transit, Inc. (a nonprofit 
ization) as of September 30, 2010, and related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash 
for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of Big Bend Transit, Inc.'s 

anagement. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards generally accepted in the 
States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 

ndards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
rform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 

ement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures 
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant 

es made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe 
tour audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
on of Big Bend Transit, Inc. as of September 30, 2010, and the changes in its net assets and its cash 
for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles generally accepted 

ited States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 22,2010, 
on our consideration of Big Bend Transit, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 

- Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of the audit. 

it was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of Big Bend 
. Transit, Inc. taken as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State 

: Financial Assistance is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of 
gement and Budget Circular A-1 33, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, 

ot a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the 
:-. auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, 

material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

John N. Shannahan, 111, CPA, LLC 
, , December 22,20 1 0 



Big Bend Transit, Inc. 

September 30,2010 

ccounts Receivable 

See accompanying notes to these financial statements. 
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Big Bend Trans 
ENT OF FINANCIAL 

September 30, 

: Accrued Leave 

Accrued Pension Liability 

Total Current Liabilities 

Undesignated 

Total Net Assets 

tal Liabilities and Net Assets 

it, Inc. 
POSIT 
2010 

See accompanying notes to these financial statements. 

ION (continued) 



Big Bend Transit, Inc. 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
September 30,2010 

Customer Revenues gi < 

s ~ ~ d ~ ~ ~ l  Awards and State Financial Assistance 

&vestment .. .. Income 
&>.. 

::+.: n" 
*&"; ,.. .?, Total Revenue *= 
ses: 
rl 

4 ,- 
A ., ;Operations 
r-  . 
L#ehicle ;. . Maintenance 
9.y 
k$Tieneral , -- Administration 
R ", 
@r L. 

Total Expenses 

;of Expenses Over Revenues 

b d  Gain on Investments 
! * z  

& in Unrestricted Net Assets 
F. 
bCted re?b . Net Assets, September 30,2009 

f&.ted Net Assets, September 30,2010 

see accompanying notes to these financial statements. 



Budget Transfers: 

1. Double Click on the icon on your screen. 
2. Double Click on BRDeFinPLUS-LIVE direct (this is the first choice) 
3. Login: Melody. C Password: MCfin20 1 0 
4. Click on Batch Budget Transfer (it's the $ bag) 
5. File-New 
6. Enter a control number (you make it up) I always used month-date-0 1,02,03,. . . 

example 102401 (01 is the 1" one 02 the 2nd etc.. .) WRITE THIS DOWN 
7. The transfer number is created by the program. WRITE IT DOWN. 
8. DEPARTMENT: Enter or find the Department number. 
9. Description: Brief description of what the transfers for. 
1 0. FDIDEPT: enter the department number in this column each line. 
1 1. ACCOUNT: Account where the money is coming from. 
12. DESCRIPTION: account description ex.. Office Supplies. 
13. FROM AMOUNT: amount of money leaving . 
14. TO ACCOUNT: amount of money coming. 
15. Click OK. 
16. Go back to the Batch Budget Transfer Page. 
17. Find your transfer. Click it to highlight it. 
18. Click RELEASEIPOST this sends it in to be reviewed. 



See accompanying notes to these financial statements. 



it- Tnr, 
ClTT mT 

FOR THE YE 
September 

ENDE 
2010 

From lperating Activities: 

nge in Net Assets 

" 

ents to reconcile change in net assets to 
erating activities: 

Increase in accounts receivable and grants receivable 
Increase in inventory 
Increase in prepaid expenses 
Decrease in accounts payable 
Decrease in accrued wages 
Increase in retirement funds payable 
Increase in accrued leave 
Unrealized gain on investments 

Total Adiustments 

'lows From 

Net Cash Provided by Operatil 

nvesting Activities: 

tivities 

Purchase of vehicles and equipment 
Purchase of investments 

k' 

Net Cash Provided From Investing Activities 
+. 

et Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
$sh and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 

ash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 

See accompanying notes to these financial statements. 

6 



Big Bend Transit, Inc. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30,2010 

Bend Transit is a non-profit corporation organized March 21, 1978 under Florida Statutes to 
ide transit services for the elderly, handicapped and other disadvantaged groups in Gadsden, 
ison, Taylor, Jefferson and Leon Counties. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 

Basis of Accounting: The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the 
accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Financial Statement Presentation: Big Bend Transit has adopted Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 1 17, "Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations". 
Under SFAS No. 117, Big Bend Transit is required to report information regarding its 
financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, 
temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets. Big Bend Transit has 
classified all net assets as unrestricted. 

Investments: Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values are 
- valued at their fair values in the statement of financial position. Realized and unrealized gains 

and losses are included in the statement of activities as changes in net assets. 

Cash and Cash Euuivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include all monies in banks and petty 
cash. 

Inventory: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market using the first in, first out 
method. Inventory consists of spare parts and fuel. 

Revenue Vehicles and Eauipment: Big Bend Transit follows the practice of capitalizing 
+ all expenditures for fixed assets in excess of $500. Fixed assets are recorded at cost and 

depreciated over estimated useful lives of 2-7 years. Depreciation is computed using the 
straight-line method. Under the terms of grant agreements with the Florida Department 
of Transportation and the Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged, monies are 
received by Big Bend Transit and used to buy new vehicles. The new vehicles are titled to Big 
Bend Transit, subject to liens to the respective funding agencies until such time as the funding 
agencies no longer consider the vehicles serviceable. This title restriction does not limit Big 
Bend Transit's intended use of such vehicles in any way. 





October 6, 2010 

Big Bend Transit, Inc. - 
P.O. Box 1721 

Tallahassee, Florida 32302 
850/574-6266 

TO: Melody Cox 
Taylor County Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board 
Courthouse Annex 
201 East Green Street 
Perry, Florida 32347 

FROM: Ted ~aters~oc\~~&--. 

RE : Taylor County 2009/2010 Annual Operations Report 

Enclosed please find a copy of the Taylor County 2009/2010 Annual 
Operations Report as transmitted to the Commission for the Transportation 
Disadvantaged on 09/21/2010. 

If you have any questions or require additional information, please call. 

encl osure 



FLCTD 
Annual Operations Report 

Section I: Face Sheet 

I~ountv:  Taylor l~ i sca l  Year: July 1,2009 - June 30,2010 

to FLCTD -------. 

1 Report Date: 109/20/2010 

I- Period Covered: 1 J U I ~  1,2009 - June 30,20 10 

1 , , Coordinator's Name:  BIG BEND TRANSIT, INC. 

I Address: [POST OFFICE BOX 1721 

L---- city: ITALLASSSEE .."a"." 

1 Zip Code: 132302 
1 Service Area: ]Taylor 

CTC Certification: 

I, EDWARD B. WATERS, as the authorized Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) 
Representative, hereby certifl, under the penalties of perjury as stated in Chapter 837.06, F.S., that the 
information contained in this report is true, accurate, and in accordance with the accompanying 
instructions. 

CTC Representative (signature) 
Edward B. Waters - 0912 1/20 1 0 

-- - 

contact-person: - 
Title: 

-, 

- Phone: 

-- - Fax: 
Email: 

Network Type: 
--- 

- Organization Type: 

LCB Statement: 

1, , as the local Coordinating Board Chairperson, hereby, certify in 
accordance with Rule 41-2.007(7) F.S. that the local Coordinating Board has reviewed this report and the 
Planning Agency has received a copy. 

LCB Signature 

-TED WATERS 

GENERAL MANAGER 
. , .  - '  - 

(850) 576 - 6266 - 
(850) 571 - 1531 - 
TWBBT@AOL.COM 

Partial Brokerage 
- ' 

%Private Non-Profit ..- 



FLCTD 
Annual Operations Report 

Section 11: General Info 

County: Taylor Fiscal Year: July 1,2009 - June 30,2010 
Status: Submitted to FLCTD 
Section 11: Coordinated System General Information 

1. Provider Listing (include the CTC, if the CTC provides transportation 
services) 

Number of Private Non-Profits: 1 
Number of Private For-Profits: 1 

Public Entities: 
School Board: 0 
Municipality: 0 

County: 0 
Transit Authority: 0 

Other: 0 
Total: 2 

2. How many of the providers listed in 1 are coordination contractors? 
0 



FLCTD 
Annual Operations Report 

Section 111: Passenger Trip Info 

1 Deviated Fixed Route Service 15239 10 15239 1 

County: Taylor .. ..-* - l~iscal  Year: July 1,2009 - June 30,2010 
Status: Submitted to FLCTD -- - 
Section 111: Passenger Trip Information -------- . ------ 

la. One-way Passenger Trips 

- - - 

Paratransit 
' ' L . - d " , .  , .. ' 

Ambulatory 

Non-Ambulatory -- 
Stretcher - - 

1 Other Services 1 

Total 

0 

0 

0 

Type of Service 

Fixed Routemixed Schedule 

Daily Trip Tickets - 
Weekly Passes ---- 
Monthly Passes 

lb. How many of the total trips were provided by contracted transportation 

I 

I 2. One-Way Trips by Funding Source I 

__II_- 

) Agency for Health Care Administration 13081 I 

I. 

I Agency for Persons with Disabilities 10 I 
Agency for Workforce Inilovation - 
Con~mission for the Transuoi-tation Disadvantaged 

Service Area 

Department of Children and Families -- 
Department of Community Affairs - ----- 
Department of Education - 
Department of Elder Affairs - -.- 

Within 

0 

0 
P '  

0 

( Department of Health 

- 
Outside 

0 

0 

0 



.... . ... .., .., . . . , .. .. - , . .. .. ..... ,.. , ., 

Department of Juvenile Justice 1 I 
Florida Department of Transportation 1 I 

I523 9 
I 1 Local Government I 

[ Local Non-Government - - -- 
[ Other Federal Programs 

. - 10 I 
t--- Total: 124885 

I Low Income: 1299 1 

3. One-Way Trips by Passenger Type --- ---- --.-""'-,"" 

L- ----- . 
Disabled: 10 I 

Was this information obtained by sampling? - 

-__ - ,  Low Incoine and Disabled: 

no 

Other: 10 

Other ----- 
Low Income: 

-' , - 

Elderly 

I-, Disabled: 

- 
Low Income: 

- Disabled: : 

- -- Low Income and Disabled: 

" P W -  

Other: 

Low Income and Disabled: 

Other: 

7961 

0 

299 

0 

C--- Total: 124885 

Children 

information obtained by sampling? -- 
4775 

14832 

1169 - 

5. Unduplicated Passenger Head Count 
lurrr̂ rwl 

5a. Paratt-ansitlaeviated Fixed Route1 School Brd 13410 





L Commendations by Transportation Providers -- -- I 
I 

Coinmendations by Coordination Contractors -------- 
Total Commendations: 

o i 
i 

0 ! 



FLCTD 
Annual Operations Report 

Section IV: Vehicle Info 

I~ounty : Taylor 
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2009 - June 30, 
llOl0 

Istatus: Submitted to FLCTD I 
[sect& IV: Vehicle Information 

1. Mileage Information +- , , -  

I- "...---" CTC: 

Providers: - 
Coordination Contractors: 

Total: . 'P 

Vehicle ~ i l ' e s l ]  Revenue Miles 1 

1 3. Accidents 

Total F-- -1 j 

I Total Accidents Vehicle Only: 10 1 
1 1 Total Accidents Person & Vehicle: 10 10 I i 

Total Accidents: (0 

Grand Total: 1 I 
.--..----~-----_1 

Number of Vehicles 

a. Total vehicles that are wheelchair accessible: 

b. Total vehicles that are stretcher equipped: 
--"..-A- - Count Percentage 

64.00% 



FLCTD 
Annual Operations Report 
Section V: Employee Info 

]status: Submitted to FLCTD I 
County: Taylor 

* 

- - - - -- 

Section V: Employee Information 
1. CTC and Transportation Provider Employee Information 

Hours 
Full-Time Drivers - ., , ,  

9476 
" 

Part-Time Drive 416 

Volunteer Drive 0 

Total Hours: 9892 - 

Fiscal Year: July 1,2009 - June 30, 
20 10 

' -  

Maintenance Employees 

Dispatchers 
- w e  

Schedulers 

Call Intake/Reserv./Cust. Serv. 

Other O~erations Em~lovees 

Hours 
Other Volunteers 0 - 

Administrative Support 
.li*-- 

2 

Management Employees 3 

i-r 

2. Coordination Contractors Employee Information ... 
#. 

Full-Time Drivers rr 

Maintenance Employees 
" 

-.---- - - .-- 
Scheduler~ 10 

Call Intake/Reserv./Cust. Serv. 10 

Part-Time Drivers 10 

Volunteer Drivers 
_1___ 

-. - Total Hours: 

10 
0 

0 



y11eaH 1E3u3J4 '78 
asnqv 8 n ~ a  'loy03~j1 

sa!I!uIad pua uaJpIrq3 JO 



Donations, 
Contributions 

l in-~ind Services 1$0.00 I$0.00 1$0.00 

lother Federal or State Programs 

' GRAND TOTAL: )$649,502.00 1$0.00 1$649,502.00 



FLCTD 
Annual Operations Report 

Section VII: Expense Sources 

----- 

---...- "",,-.- ".., el"- ----..--..-.IL--- - 
GRAND TOTAL: 1;$649,497.00 1 $ 0 . 0 0 1 $ 6 4 9 , 4 9 7 . 0 0  

.- - - - - - - - . - -- - --- 





County: Taylor 
CTC: Big Bend Transit, Inc. 
Contact: Ted Waters 

Post Office Box 1721 
Tallahassee, FL 32302 
850-576-6266 

Email: twbbtQaol.com 

Demographics Number Percentage 
~ C u r d S T h b o r d r  . 

Total County Population / 
Percent of State Total 23,200 
Potential TD Population / 
Percent of CountyTotal 

0.12°,0 crm: 
8,070 34.78% ~mr\zwrbotlon 

UDPHC / Percent of TD 
Passengers Served 4,274 52.96% 

DU 

j 2009 % Change 
Fixed Route (FR) N A 
Deviated FR 
Ambulatory 
Non-Ambulatory 
Stretcher 
School Board 
TOTAL TRIPS 

Passenger Trips By Trip Purpose 
Medical 5,488 4,473 -18.49% 
Employment 
Ed/Train/DayCare 
Nutritional 
Life-Sustaining/Other 
TOTAL TRIPS 

Passenger Trips By Funding Source 
ClD 6,456 4,935 -23.56% 
AHCA 3,749 3,096 -17.42% 
APD 29 -lOO.OOO/o 
DOEA N A 
DOE 10 -lOO.OOO/o 
Other 20,919 14,706 -29.70% 
TOTAL TRIPS 31,163 22,737 -27.04% 

Vehicle Data 2008 2009 % Change 
Vehicle Miles 310,163 231,373 -25.40% 
Revenue Miles 270,758 202,908 -25.06% 
Roadcalls 12 4 -66.67% 
Accidents 1 N A 
Vehicles 18 17 -5.56% 
Driver Hours 15,538 11,179 -28.05% 

Financial and General Data 
Expenses $631,091 $523,599 -17.03% 
Revenues $639,985 $638,539 -0.23% 
Commendations N A 
Complaints 3 N A 
Passenger No-shows 146 150 2.74% 
Unmet Trip Requests 282 N A 

Performance Measures 
Accidents per 100,000 Miles 0 0.43 
Miles between Roadcalls 25,847 57,843 
Avg. Trips per Driver Hour 2.01 2.03 
Avg. Trips per Para Pass. 13.63 5.32 
Cost per Trip 20.25 23.03 
Cost per Paratransit Trip 20.25 23.03 
Cost per Driver Hour 40.62 46.84 
Cost per Total Mile 2.03 2.26 
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Number Percentage Fbrldobmnimbnlorun . County: Suwannee Demographics . 
CTC: Suwannee Valley Transit Authority Total County Population / 
Contact: James Swisher Percent of State Total 40,900 0.22% 

1907 Voyles St. Potential TD Population / 
Live Oak. FL 32064 Percent of CountyTotal 15.509 37.92% - - ,- - -  

- -- ~ 

UDPHC / Percent of TD 
Passengers Served 5,789 37.33% 

Trips By Type of Service 2008 2009 O/O Change Vehicle Data 2008 2009 % Change 
Fixed Route (FR) N A Vehicle Miles 1,086,904 1,096,459 0.88% 
Deviated FR 
Ambulatory 
Non-Ambulatory 
Stretcher 
School Board 
TOTAL TRIPS 

80,113 79,921 -0.24% Revenue Miles 
108,763 108,928 0.15% Roadcalls 
13,807 13,812 0.04% Accidents 
3,869 3,909 1.03% Vehicles 

- N A Driver Hours 

206,552 206,570 0.01% 

Passenger Trips By Trip Purpose 
Medical 162,051 161,584 -0.29% 

Financial and General Data 
Expenses $1,635,974 $1,635,974 0.00% 

Employment 
EdflrainJDayCare 
Nutritional 
Life-SustainingJOther 
TOTALTRIPS , 

3,822 3,798 -0.63% ~evenues $1,687,632 $1,687,632 0.00% 
28,245 28,754 1.80% Commendations 1 1 0.00% 
10,894 10,894 0.00% Complaints 6 6 0.00% 
1,540 1,540 0.00% Passenger No-shows 60 61 1.67% 

206,552 206,570 0.01% Unmet Trip Requests 28 28 0.00% 

Passenger Trips By Funding Source 
CTD 53,210 53,221 0.02% 
AHCA 138,102 137,994 -0.08% 
APD 3,145 3,142 -0.10% 
DOEA N A 
DOE N A 
Other 12,095 12,213 0.98% 
TOTAL TRIPS 206,552 206,570 0.01% 

Performance Measures 
Accidents per 100,000 Miles 0 0 N A 
Miles between Roadcalls 1,086,904 1,096,459 0.88% 
Avg. Trips per Driver Hour 4.6 4.59 -0.22% 
Avg. Trips per Para Pass. 35.66 35.68 0.06% 
Cost per Trip 7.92 7.92 0.00% 
Cost per Paratransit Trip 7.92 7.92 0.00% 
Cost per Driver Hour 36.45 36.37 -0.22% 
Cost per Total Mile 1.51 1.49 -1.32% 

90 I P a g e  







NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, 
THAT THE TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD 

OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
WILL HOLD A PUBLIC HEARING 

TUESDAY APRIL 20, 2010 AT 6:15 P.M., 
TO RECEIVE PUBLIC INPUT REGARDING 

THE TAYLOR COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED 
PROGRAM AND UPDATE THE PUBLIC ON THE 

STATUS AND GOALS OF THE PROGRAM FOR 2010. 
THlS PUBLIC HEARING IS HELD PER THE TERMS OF 
THE PLANNING GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE 

FLORIDA COMMISSION FOR THE TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED 

ALL MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ARE WELCOME TO ATTEND. 
NOTICE IS FURTHER HEREBY GIVEN PURSUANT TO 

FLORIDA STATUTE 286.0105, THAT ANY PERSON OR PERSONS 
DECIDING TO APPEAL ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THlS 

MEETING WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE HEARING AND MAY NEED TO 
ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS 
IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND 

EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED. 

THE PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD IN THE 
TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING ROOM 

201 E GREEN STREET 
PERRY, FLORIDA 32347 

ALL PERSONS INTERESTED IN THlS MATTER SHOULD BE 
GOVERNED BY THlS PUBLIC NOTICE 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION MAY BE OBTAINED FROM: 
Melody Cox 
(858) 838-3553 

DATED THlS 1 7 ~ ~  DAY OF MARCH, 2010 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 



AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION of the Taylor County Board of Commissioners, hereinafter 
BOARD. Hereby approves the selection of Big Bend Transit, Inc. as the Community 
Transportation Coordinator for Taylor County with the Florida Commission for the 
Transportation Disadvantaged. 

WHEREAS, this BOARD is the Designated Official Planning Agency and has the 
authority to recommend the selection of the Community Transportation Coordinator for 
approval by the Florida Commission for k Transportation Disadvantaged. The BOARD 
has foliowed all procedures for selection as outlined in the Competitive Procurement 
Guidebook prepared by the Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD THAT: 

1. The BOARD recommends the designation of Big Bend Transit, Inc. as the 
Community Transportation Coordinator. 

2. The BOARD authorizes DARYLL GUNTER to file and execute any contracts 
or documents associated with the selection of the Community Transportation 
Coordinator on behalf of the Taylor County Board of County Commissioners with 
the FIorida Commission fbr the Transportation Disadvantaged. 

DULY PASSED AND ADOPTU) THIS /b'bAY OF ~ Q Y  ,2006. 

TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

- ~ n &  Mae Murphy 

Tvped Name of Clerk of Courts 

Cvac, hL& n.4. 
Signature o'f clerk of Courts 



FlOlllDA COMMlSSlON FOR M 

R x E i  
Charlie Crist 
Governor 

JR Harding Ed.D. 
Chairpenon 

Donna Loggie 
Vice Chairpenon 

Lisa M. Bacot 
Executive Direator 

...-.- 

CORRECTED 

January 8, 2007 

Mr. Ted Waters 
Big Bend Transit, Inc. 
Post Office Box 1721 
Tallahassee, FL 32302 

Dear Mr. Waters: 

RE: Memorandum of Agreement TD0638 
Taylor County 

Enclosed, is an executed copy i f  the Memorandum of Agreement for 
Big Bend Transit, Inc. The effective date of the agreement is October 
1, 2006 through June 30, 201.1. 

Thank you for your continued support of the Transportation 
Disadvantaged Coordinated System. Please contact Erin Schepers at 
(850) 410-5710 if you have any questions concerning this project. 

L& M. Bacot 
Executive Director 
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605 Suwannee Street, MS-49 - Tallahassee, FL 32399-0450 
Phone: (850) 410-5700 a, Toll Free: (800) 983-2435 - Fax: (850) 410-5752 

w.dot.state.fl.uslctd 



Contract # TD0638 

Effective: I 0-1 -2006 to 6-30-201 1 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COMMISSION FOR THE TRANSPORTATION DISADVAN-I-AGED 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 

This Memorandum of Agreement is between the COMMISSION FOR THE TRANSPORTATION 
DISADVANTAGED, hereby referred to as the "Commission," and 

Bia Bend Transit, Inc., Post Office Box 1721, Tallahassee. FL 32302 
the COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR, designated pursuant to Chapter 427, F.S., to 
serve the transportation disadvantaged for the community that includes the entire area of 

Tavlor county(ies), ar~d hereafter referred to as the 
"Coordinator." 

This Agreement is made in consideration of the mutual benefits to both parties; said consideration 
acknowledged hereto by the parties as good and valuable consideration. 

The Parties Agree: 

I. The Coordir~ator Shall: 

A. Become and remain totally apprised of all of the Transportation Disadvantaged resources 
available or planned in their designated service area. This knowledge will be used to plan, 
coordinate, and implement the most cost effective transportation disadvantaged transit 
system possible under the economic and other conditions that exist in the designated service 
area. 

B. Plan and work with Community Transportation Coordinators in adjacent and other areas of 
the state to coordinate the provision of community trips that might be handled at a lower 
overall cost to the community by .another Coordinator. This includes honoring any 
Commission-approved statewide certification prograrn that allows for intercounty 
transportation opportunities. 

C. Arrange for all services in accordance with Chapter 427, Florida Statutes, and Rule 41-2, 
FAC, and as further required by the Commission and the local Coordinating Board approved 
Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan. 

D. Return any acquired profits or surplus funds originating through the course of business as the 
Coordil-lator that are beyond the amounts(s) specifically identified and approved in the 
accompanying Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan. Such profits or funds shall be 
returned to the Coordinator's transportation systern or to any subsequent Coordinator, as a 
total transportation system subsidy, to be applied to the irnmediate following operational year. 
The Coordinator will include similar language in all coordination contracts to assure that 
transportation disadvantaged related revenues are put back into transportation disadvantaged 
services. 
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Accomplish this Project by: 9 

Developing a Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan for approval by the local 
Coordinating Board and the Commission. Coordinators who are newly designated to a 
particular service area shall submit a local Coordinating Board approved 
Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan, within 120 calendar days following the 
execution of the Coordinator's initial memorandum of agreement with the Commission, 
for approval by the Commission. All subsequent Trar~sportation Disadvantaged 
Service Plans shall be submitted and approved with the corresponding memorandum 
of agreement. The approved Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan will be 
implemented and monitored to provide for community-wide transportation services for 
purchase by non-sponsored'transportation disadvantaged persons, contracting social 
service agencies, and other entities that use local, state, or federal government funds 
for the purchase of transportation for the transportation disadvantaged. 

2. Maximizing the use of available public school transportation resources and public fixed 
route or fixed schedule transit services and assuring that private or public transit, 
paratransit operators, and school boards have been afforded a fair opportunity to 
participate to the maximum extent feasible in the planning process and in the 
development of the provisions of the Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan for 
the transportation disadvantaged. 

3. Providing or arranging 24-hour, -/-day per week transportation disadvantaged service 
as required in the designated service area by any Federal, State or Local Government 
agency sponsoring such services. The provision of said services shall be furnished in 
accordance with the prior notification requirements identified in the local Coordinating 
Board and Commission approved Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan. 

4. Complying with all local, state, and federal laws and regulations that apply to the 
provision of transportation disadvantaged services. 

5. Submitting to the Commission an Annual Operating Report detailing demographic, 
operational, and financial data regarding coordination activities in the designated 
service area. The report shall be prepared on forms provided by the Commission and 
according to the ir~structions of said iorms. 

F. Comply with Audit and Record Keeping Requirements by: 

1. Utilizing the Commission recognized Chart of Accounts defined in the Transporfation 
Accounting Consorfium Model Uniform Accounting System for Rural and Specialized 
Transporfation Providers (uniform accounting system) for all transportation 
disadvantaged accounting and reporting purposes. Community Transportation 
Coordinators with existing and eq~~ivalent accounting systems are not required to adopt 
the Chart of Accounts in lieu of their existing Chart of Accounts but shall prepare all 
reports, invoices, and fiscal documents relating to the transportation disadvantaged 
functions and activities using the chart of accounts and accour~ting definitions as 
outlined in the above referenced manual. 
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2. Assuming the responsibility of invoicing for any transportation services arranged, 
unless otherwise stipulated by a purchase of service contract or coordination contract. 

3. Maintaining and filing. with the Commission, local Coordinating Board, arld all 
purchasing agencieslentities such progress, fiscal, inventory, and other reports as 
those entities may require during the period of this Agreement. 

4. Providing copies of finance and compliance audits to the Commission and local 
Coordinating Board as requested by the Commission or local Coordinating Board. 

Reporting accidents involving a vehicle operated within the coordinated transportation 
system in the coordinator's designated service area. Accidents involving a fatality or 
fatalities must be reported to the Commission not rnore than 24 hours after the 
community transportation coordinator becomes aware of the fatal accident. Any other 
accident, those not involving a fatality or fatalities, with over $1,000 in property 
damages, or personal injury that requires evacuation to *a medical facility or a 
combination of both, must be reported to the Commission not more than 72 hours after 
the community transportation coordinator becomes aware of the accident. Copies of 
any accident report or reports prepared or received by the community transportation 
coordinator as a result of any accident must be sent to the Commission upon receipt or 
preparation of the report. 

G. Retain all financial records, supportirlg documents, statistical records, and any other 
documents pertinent to this Agreement for a period of five (5) years after termination of this 
Agreement. If an audit has been initiated and audit findings have not been resolved at the 
end of five (5) years, the records shall be retained until resolution of the audit findings. The 
Coordinator shall assure that these records shall be subject to inspection, review, or audit at 
all reasonable times by persons duly authorized by the Commission or this Agreement. They 
shall have full access to and the right to examine any of the said records and documents 
during the retention period. 

H. Comply with Safety Requirements by: 

1. Complying with Section 341.061, F.S., and Rule 14-90, FAC, concerning System 
Safety; or complying with Chapter 234.051, F.S., regarding school bus safety 
requirements for those services provided through a school board; and 

2. Assuring compliance with local, state, and federal laws, and Commission policies 
relating to drug testing. Conduct drug and alcohol testing for safety sensitive job 
positior~s within the coordinated system regarding pre-employment, randomization, 
post-accident, and reasorlable suspicion as required by the Federal Highway 
Administration and the Federal Transit Admi~iistration. 

I. Comply with Commission insurance requirements by maintaining at least minimum liability 
insurance coverage in the amount of $100,000 for any one person and $200,000 per 
occurrence at all times during the existence of this Agreement for all transportation services 
purchased or provided for the transportation disadvantaged through the Community 
Transportation Coordinator. Upon the execution of this Agreement, the Coordinator shall add 
the Commission as an additional named insured to all insurance policies covering vehicles 
transporting the transportation disadvantaged. In the event of any cancellation or changes in 
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the limits of liability in the insurance policy, the insurance agent or broker shall n i i f y  the 
Commission. The Coordirlator shall irlsure that contracting transportation operators and 
coordination contractors also maintain the same minimum liability insurance, or an equal 
governmental insurance program. School board vehicle insurance coverage shall be in 
accordance with Section 234.03, F.S., and 234.21 1, F.S. Insurance coverage in excess of $I 
million per occurrence must 'be approved by the Commission and the local Coordinating 
Board before inclusion in the Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan or in the justification 
of rates and fare structures. Such coverage may be provided by a self-insurance prograrn 
established and operating under the laws of the State of Florida and written verification of 
insurance protection in accordance with Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, shall be provided to 
the Cornmissiorl upon request. 

J. Safeguard information by not using or disclosing any information concerning a user of 
services under this Agreemerit for any purpose not in conformity with the local, state and 
federal regulations (45 CFR, Part 205.50), except upon order of a court, written consent of the 
recipient, or hislher responsible parent or guardian when authorized by law. 

K. Protect Civil Rights by: 

1. Complyir~g with state and federal laws irlcluding bat not limited to laws regarding 
discrimination on the basis of sex, race, religion, age, disability, sexual orientation, or 
national origin. The Coordinator gives this assurance in consideration of and for the 
purpose of obtaining federal grants, loans, contracts (except contracts of insurance or 
guaranty), property, discounts, or other federal financial assistance to programs or 
activities receiving or benefiting from federal financial assistance and agreeing to 
complete a Civil Rights Compliance Questionnaire if so requested by the Commission. 

Agreeing that compliance with this assurance constitutes a condition of continued 
receipt of or benefit from federal financial assistance, and that it is binding upon the 
Coordinator, its successors, subcontractors, transferee, and assignees for the period 
during which such assistance is provided. Assure that all operators, subcontractors, 
subgrantee, or others with whom the Coordinator arranges to provide services or 
benefits to participants or employees in connection with any of its programs and 
activities are not discriminating against those participants or employees in violation of 
the above statutes, regulations, guidelines, and standards. In the event of failure to 
comply, the Coordinator agrees that the Cornmission may, at its discretion, seek a 
court order requiring compliance with the terms of this assurance or seek other 
appropriate judicial or administrative relief, to include assistance being terminated and 
further assistance being denied. 

L. To the extent allowed by Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, and only to the monetary and other 
limitations contained therein, indemnify and hold harmless the Commission and all of the 
Commission's members, officers, agents, and employees; purchasing agencylentity officers, 
agents, and employees; and the local, state, and federal governments from any claim, loss, 
damage, cost, charge or expense arising out of any act, action, neglect or omission by the 
Coordirlator during the performance of this Agreement, whether direct or indirect, and whether 
to any person or property to which the Commission or said parties may be subject, except that 
neither the Coordinator nor any of its sub-contractors will be liable under this section for 
damages arising out of injury or damage to persons or property directly caused or resulting 
from the sole negligence of the Commission or any of its members, officers, agents or 
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employees; purchasing agencylentity, officers, agents, and employees; and local, state, or 
federal governments. Nothirlg herein is intended to serve as a waiver of sovereign immunity 
by any agencylentity or Coordinator to which sovereign immunity may be applicable. Nothi~ig 
herein shall be construed as consent by a state agencylentity or political subdivision of the 
State of Florida or the federal government to be sued by third parties in any matter arising out 
of any Agreement or contract. Notwithstanding the foregoing, pursuant to Section 768.28, 
Florida Statutes, no agency or subdivision of the state shall be required to indemnify, insure, 
or assume any liability for the Commission's negligence. 

M. Comply with standards and performance requirements of the Commission, the local 
Coordinating Board approved Trar~sportation Disadvantaged Service Plan, and any purchase 
of service contracting agencieslentities. Failure to meet the requirements or obligations set 
forth in this MOA, and performance requirements established and monitored by the local 
Coordinating Board in the approved Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan, shall be due 
cause for non-payment of reimbursement invoices until such deficiencies have been 
addressed or corrected to the satisfaction of the Commission. 

N. Comply with subcontracting requirements by executing or negotiating contracts for 
transportation services with Transportation Operators and Coordination Contractors, and 
assuring that the conditions of such contracts are maintained. The requirements of Part 1, 
Paragraph E.5. through M are to be included in all contracts, subcontracts, coordination 
contracts, and assignments made by the Coordir~ator for services under this Agreement. Said 
contracts, subcontracts, coordination contracts, and assignrnents will be reviewed and 
approved annually by the Coordinator and local Coordinating Board for conformance with the 
requirements of this Agreement. 

0. Comply with the following requirements concerning drivers and vehicles: 

Drivers for paratransit services, including coordination contractors, shall be required to 
annourlce and identify themselves by name and company in a manner that is 
conducive to communications with the specific passenger, upon pickup of each rider, 
group of riders, or representative, guardian, or associate of the rider, except in 
situations where the driver regularly transports the rider or1 a recurring basis. Each 
driver must have photo identification that is in view of the passenger. Narrle patches, 
inscriptions or badges that affix to driver clothing are acceptable. For transit services, 
the driver photo identification shall be in a conspicuous location in the vehicle. 

The paratransit driver shall provide the passenger with boarding assistance, if 
necessary or requested, to the seating portion of the vehicle. The boarding assistance 
shall irlclude opening the vehicle door, fastening the seat belt or utilization of 
wheelchair securement devices, storage of mobility assistive devices, and closing the 
vehicle door. In certain paratransit service categories, the driver may also be required 
to open and close doors to buildings, except in situatiorls in which assistance in 
openinglclosing building doors would not be safe for passengers remaining on the 
vehicle. Assisted access must be in a dignified manner. Drivers may not assist 
wheelchair up or down more than one step, unless it can be performed safely as 
determined by the passenger, guardian, and driver. 

3. All vehicles shall be equipped with two-way communications in good working order and 
be audible to the driver at all times to the base. 
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4. All vehicles providing service within the coordinated system, shall have working air 
conditioners and heaters in each vehicle. Vehicles that do not have a working air 
conditioner or heater will be scheduled for repair or replacement as soon as possible. 

P. Comply with other requirements as follows: 

1. Transport an escort of a passenger and dependent children as locally negotiated and 
identified in the local Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan. 

2. Determine locally in the Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan, the use, 
responsibility, and cost of child restraint devices. 

3. Transport with the passenger at no additional charge, passenger property that can be 
carried by the passenger and/or driver in one trip and can be safely stowed on the 
vehicle. Additional requirements may be negotiated for carrying and loading rider 
property beyond this amount. Passenger property does not include wheelchairs, child 
seats, stretchers, secured oxygen, personal assistive devices, or intravenous devices. 

4. Provide shelter, security, and safety of passengers at vehicle transfer points. 

5. Post a local or other toll-free number for complaints or grievances inside each vehicle. 
The local complaint process shall be outlined as a section in the local Transportation 
Disadvantaged Service Plan including advising the dissatisfied person about the 
Commission's Ombudsman Program as a step within the process as approved by the 
local Coordi~iating Board. 

6. Provide out-of-service-area trips, when determined locally and approved by the local 
Coordinating Board, except in instances where local ordinances prohibit such trips. 

7. Keep interior of all vehicles free from dirt, grime, oil, trash, tom upholstery, damaged or 
broken seats, protruding metal or other objects or materials which could soil items 
placed in the vehicle or provide discomfort for the passenger. 

8. Determine locally by the local Coordinating Board and provide in the local 
Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan the billing requirements of the Community 
Transportation Coordinator. All bills shall be paid to subcontractors within 7 calendar 
days after receipt of said payment by the Coordinator, in accordance with Section 
287.0585, Florida Statutes. 

9. Maintain or have access to a passengerltrip database on each rider being transported 
within the system. 

10. Provide each rider and escort, child, or persor~al care attendant adequate seating for 
paratransit services. No more passengers than the registered passenger seating 
capacity shall be scheduled or tra.nsported in a vehicle at any time. For transit services 
provided by transit vehicles, adequate seating or standing space will be provided to 
each rider and escort, child, or personal care attendant, and no more passengers than , 

the registered passenger seating or standing capacity shall be scheduled or 
transported in a vehicle at any time. 
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1 I. First Aid shall be determined locally and provided in the local Transportation 
Disadvantaged Service Plan. 

12. Cardiopulmonary Resuscitatior~ shall be determined locally and provided in the local 
Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan. 

II. The Commission Shall: 

A. Recognize the Coordinator as the entity described in Section 427.01 1 (5), Florida Statutes, 
and Rule 41 -2.002(4), F.A.C. 

6. Atternpt to insure that all entities with transportation disadvantaged funds will purchase 
transportation disadvantaged services through the Coordinator's system. 

111 .  ' The' Coordinator and the Commission Further Agree: 

A. Nothing in this Agreement shall require the Commission to observe or enforce compliance 
with any provision thereof, perform any other act or do any other thing in contravention of any 
applicable state law. If any of the provisions of this Agreement is found by a court of law to 
violate any applicable state law, the purchasing agencylentity will at once notify the 
Commission in writing in order that appropriate changes and modifications may be made by 
the Commission and the Coordinator to the end that the Coordinator may proceed as soon as 
possible with the provision of transportation services. 

6. If any part or provision of this Agreement is held ir~valid, the remainder of this Agreement shall 
be binding on the parties hereto. 

C. Termination Conditions: 

1. Termination at Will - This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon no less 
than thirty (30) days'notice, without cause. Said notice shall' be delivered by certified 
mail, return receipt required, or in person with proof of delivery. 

2. Termination for Breach - Unless the Coordinatoh breach is waived by the Commission 
in writing, the Commission may, by written notice to the Coordinator, terminate this 
Agreement upon no less than twenty-four (24) hours notice. Said notice shall be 
delivered by certified mail, return receipt requested, or in person with proof of delivery. 
Waiver by the Commission of breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be 
deemed to be a waiver of any other breach and shall not be construed to be a 
modification of the terms of this Agreement, and shall not act as a waiver or estoppel 
to enforcement of any provision of this Agreement. The provisions herein do not limit , 

the Cornmission's right to remedies at law or to damages. 

D. This agreement will expire unless an exter~sion is granted to the Coordinator in writing by the 
Commission for the Transportation, in accordance with Chapter 287, Florida Statutes. 

E. Renegotiations or Modifications of this Agreement shall only be valid when they have been 
reduced to writing, duly approved by the Commission, and signed by both parties hereto. 
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F. Notice and Contact: 

The name and address of the contract manager for the Commission for this Agreement is: 
Executive Director, 605 Suwannee Street, MS-49, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0450. The 
representativelposition of the Coordinator responsible for administration of the program under 
this Agreement is: 

General Manager, Post Office Box 1721, Tallahassee, FL 32302 

In the event that either party designates different representatives after execution of this 
Agreement, notice of the name and address of the new representative will be rendered in 
writing to the other party and said notification attached to originals of this Agreement. 

This document has been reviewed in its entirety and approved by the local Coordinating Board at its 
held on I?&& r a ,  d o 0 6  

Coordinating Board Chairperson 

WITNESS W'HEREOF, the parties hereto have caused these presents to be executed. 

COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION 
COORDINATOR: 

STATE OF FLORIDA, COMMISSION FOR 
THE TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED: 

BIG BEND TRANSIT, INC. Lisa Bacot 
Agency Name Typed Name of Authorized Individual 
Edward B. Waters 

Typed Name of Authorized Individual Signature: 

Signature: f~ L 
Title: Executive Director 

Title: General Manager Attes 

ATTEST: 
Nicole B. Branch 
Commission # DD573044 

s7+,.6q3 Expires July fl ,2010 
, @.a&T~y Fan -1nnmnse. lnc (UX)-sS-mlg 
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January 23, 2007 

Big Bend Transit, Inc. - 
P.O. Box 1721 

Tallahassee, Florida 32302 
8501574-6266 

TO : Melody Cox 
Taylor County Grants Coordinator 
Taylor County Administrative Complex 
201 East Green Street 
Perry, Florida 32347 

FROM: Ted Waters, General Manager - 4 r n - L  

RE : Memorandum of Agreement, TD0638 

As requested, enclosed please find a copy of the Memorandum of Agreement 
between the Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged and Big Bend 
Transit, Inc. (BBT), establishing BBT as the Community Transportation 
Coordinator (CTC) for Taylor County for the period 10/01/2006 through 
06/30/11. 

If you have any questions or need additional information, please call. 

enclosures 



FLORIDA COMMISSION FOR THE 

rtation 

Charlie Crist 
Governor 

JR Harding Ed.D. 
Chairpenon 

Lawrence Forman 
Vice Chairperson 

Bobby Jernigan 
Executive Director 

July 14, 2009 

Ms. Melody Cox 
Taylor County Board of County Commissioners 
Post Ofice Box 620 
Perry, Florida 32347 

Re: Planning Grant Agreement #APJ76 
(Taylor County) 

Ms. Cox: 

Enclosed is your copy of the fully executed grant agreement for the above 
referenced project. Consider this letter to be your authorization to proceed 
and begin incurring project costs, effective the execution date of this 
agreement. 

Please also find attached a form letter that is to be completed as appropriate 
and forwarded to all subcontractors providing service funded by 
Transportation Disadvantaged Trust Fund moneys. Distribution of the letters 
to subcontractors should coincide with the execution date of the grant. A 
copy of each letter shall be provided to the Commission. 

Thank you for your continued support of the Transportation Disadvantaged 
Coordinated System. Please contact me at (850) 410-5702 if you have any 
questions concerning this project. 

Sincerely, 

Transportation Disadvantaged Specialist/ 
Regional Manager 

Enclosure: Executed Agreement 
Sample Subcontractor Letter 

cc: DOT Comptroller 
Elmer Melertdez, Fi~iar~cial Services Manager 

605 Suwannee Street, MS49 m Tallahassee, FL 32399-0450 
Phone: (850) 410-5700 m Toll Free: (800) 983-2435 m Fax: (850) 410-5752 

w.dotstate.fl.uslctd 



July 1, 2009 

Third Party Subcontractor 
2000 W. Consultant Avenue, Suite 800 
Yourtown, Florida 39999 

Dear Subcontractor: 

As a subcorltractor providing services to the Designated Official Planning Agency (DOPA), you are 
entitled to prompt payment for services funded by the Commission for the Transportation 
Disadvantaged Trust Fund as outlined in the Planning Grant executed between the Commission and 
the DOPA as follows: 

21.20 Payment to Subcontractors: Payment by the Grantee to all subcontractors with approved 
third party contracts shall be in compliance with Section 287.0585, Florida Statutes. Each third party 
contract from the Grantee to a subcontractor for goods or services to be performed in whole or in 
part with Transportation Disadvantaged Trust Fund moneys, must contain the following statement: 

When a contractor receives from a state agency any payment for contractual services, commodities, 
supplies, or construction contracts, except those construction contracts subject to the provisions of 
chapter 339, the contractor shall pay such moneys received to each subcontractor and supplier in 
proportion to the percentage of work completed by each subcontractor and supplier at the time of 
receipt of the payment. If the contractor receives less than full payment, then the contractor shall be 
required to disburse only the funds received on a pro rata basis with the contractor, subcontractors, 
and suppliers, each receiving a prorated portion based on the amount due on the payment. If the 
contractor without reasonable cause fails to make payments required by this section to 
subcontractors and suppliers within 7 working days after the receipt by the contractor of full orpartial 
payment, the contractor shall pay to the subcontractors and suppliers a penalty in the amount of 
one-half of 1 percent of the amount due, per day, from the expiration of the period allowed herein for 
payment. Such penalty shall be in addition to actualpayments owed and shall not exceed 15percent 
of the outstanding balance due. In addition to other fines or penalties, a person found not in 
compliance with any provision of this subsection may be ordered by the court to make restitution for 
attorney's fees and all related costs to the aggrieved party or the Department of Legal Affairs when it 
provides legal assistance pursuant to this section. The Department of Legal Affairs may provide legal 
assistance to subcontractors or vendors in proceedings brought against contractors under the 
provisions of this section. 

If you feel that the Designated Official Planning Agency is not fulfilling the obligatior~s as outlined in 
the above paragraph, you can seek assistarlce through the Commission for the Transportation 
Disadvantaged Ombudsman Prograrn Helpline at 1-800-983-2435 (TTY 1-800- 648-6084) or the 
Florida Department of Financial Service's Vendor Ombudsman Helpline at 1-877-693-5236. 

Sincerely, 

Johnny L. Planner 
Super Florida Planning Agency 
Designated Official Planning Agency 

cc: Bobby Jernigan, Executive Director 
Commissiorl for the Transportation Disadvantaged 
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4. State awards are to be identified using the Catalog of State Finanaal Assistance (CSFA) 
title and number, award number and year, and name of the state agency awarding it. 

Part 111: Other Audit Requirements 

The Recipient shall follow up and take mect i ie  action on audit findings. Preparation of a 
summary schedule of prior year audit findings, including amxtive action and current status of 
the audit findings is required. Current year audit findings require corrective action and status of 
findings. 

Records related to unresolved audit findings, appeals, or litigation shall be retained until the 
action is cunpleted or the dispute is resolved. A a s s  to prqect records and audit work papers 
shall be given to the Commission, the Department of Finanaal S e r v i i  and the Auditor General. 
This sxtion does not limit the authority of the Commission bo amduct or anange for the 
conduct of additional audits or evaluations of state financial assistance or limit the authority of 
any ather state official. 

Part N: Report Submission 

1. . ' Copies of reporting packages for audits conducted in accordance with OMB Circular A- 
133, as revised, and required by Part I above shall be submi i ,  when required by 
Section .320(d), OMB Circular A-133, as revised, by or on behalf of the recipient directly 
to each of the following: 

A. Regional Manager 
Florida Commission for the Transportation D ian taged  
605 Suwannee Street, MS 49 
Tallahassee, FkMa 32399-0450 

B, The Federal Audit Clearinghouse designated in OM9 Circular A-133, as revised 
(the number of a)pies required by Sections .320(dXl) and (2), OM9 CCmlar A- 
133, as revised, should be submiW to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse) at the 
fo#owing address: 

Federal Audit Clearinghouse 
Bureau of the Census 
1201 East ldh stref3 
kfferscmville, IN  47132 

C Other Federal agencies and pass-through entities in accordance with Sections 
.320 (e) and (f), OMB Circular A-133, as revised. 

2. In the event that a mpy of the reporting package for an audit required by Part I 
above and d u c t e d  in acrxKdance witti OM9 Cimlar A-133, as revised, is M required 
to be submitted to the Commission for reasons pursuant to section .320(eX2), OMB 
Circular A-133, as revised, the recipient shall submi the required written notification 

Planning Grant Agreement ~ / z o l O  
Fam Rev. W/14p9 
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to be used in the work of this agreement or in the performance of any other work for which 
the Grantee is responsible. 

13.33 Solicitations: No officer or employee of the Grantee shall directly or indirectly solilcit 
or accept funds from any person who has, maintains, or seeks business relations with the 
Grantee. 

13.34 Former Employees - Contractual Senrices: Unless authorized in writing by the 
Commission, no employee ofthe Grantee shall, within 1 year after rebirement or termination, 
have or hold any employment or mtractual relationship with any business ent i i  in 
con- with any contmt for amtractual services w h i i  was within his or her 
responsibility while an employee. 

13.35 Former Employees - Consulting Senrices: The sum of money paid to a former 
employee ofthe Grantee during the first year after the assation of his or her reqmsibilii, 
by the Grantee, for contractual services provided to the Grantee, shall not exceed the annual 
salary reoeived on the date of cessabion of his or her responsibilities. The provisions of this 
section may be waived by the Grantee for a particular contract if the Grantee determines, 
and the Commission approves, that such waiver will result in significant time or oost savings 
for the Grantee and the praject. 

The Grantee shall insert in all contracts entered into in connection with this Agreement 
and shall require its con- to insert in each of their s u ~ ,  the following 
provision: 

"No member, officer, or employee of the Grantee during his benure or for orre year 
thereafter shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in this mntract or the proceeds 
thereof." 

The provisions of this section shall not be applicable to any agreement between the Grantee 
and its fixal deposkxies, or to any agreement for utility services the rates for which are 
fixed or contrdled by a Governmental agency. 

13.40 Non-discrimination of Persons With Disabilities: The Grantee and any of its 
contractors or their su- shall n& discriminate against anyone m the basis of a 
handicap or disability (physical, mental or emotional impairment). The Grantee agrees that no 
funds shall be used to rent, lease or barter any real pmperty that is not accessible to persons with 
disabilities nor shall any meeting be held in any faaltty unless the facility is accessible to perscms 
with disabilities. The Grantee shall also assure mpliance with The Americans with Disabili i 
Act, as it may be amended from time to time. 

13.50 Lobbying Prohibition: No Grantee may use any funds raved pursuant to this 
Agreement for the purpose of lobbying the Legislature, the judicial branch, or a state agency. No 
Grantee may ernploy any person or organization with funds received pursuant to this Agreement 
for the purpose of lobbying the Legislature, the judicial branch, or a date agency. The "purpose of 
lobbying" includes, but is not limited to, salaries, travel expenses and per diem, the cost for 
publication and distribution of each publi~ation used in lobbying; other printing; media; 
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advertising, including production costs; postage; entertainment; telephone; and association dues. 
The provisions of this paragraph supplement the provisions of section 11.062, Florida Satutes, 
which is incorporabed by reference into this Agreement. 

13.60 Public Entity Crimes: No Grantee shall accept any bid from, award any contract to, or 
bansact any business with any person or affiliate on the a m v W  vendor list for a period d 36 
months from the date that person or affiliate was placed on the convicted vendor list unless that 
person or affiliate has been removed from the list pursuant to section 287.133, Florida Satutes. 
The Grantee may not allow such a person or affiliate to perform work as a amtractor, supplier, 
su-, or msultant under a amtract with the Grantee. I f  the Grantee was transacting 
business with a person at the time of the commission of a public entity crime which resulted in 
that person being placed on the amvicted vendor list, the Gtantee may also not acceqt any bid 
from, award any amtract to, or transact any business with any other person who is under the 
same, or substantially the same, control as the person whose name appears on the convicted 
vendor list so long as that person's name appears on the convicted vendor list 

14.00 Miscellaneous Provisions: 

14.10 Environmental Pollution: All Proposals, Plans, and Specifations fbr the acquisib'on, 
mstnrction, or impmvement of vehicles or equipment, shall show that such v e h i i  or 
equipment are equipped to prevent and amtrol environmental pollution. 

14.20 Commission Not Obligated to Third Parties: The Commission shall not be obligated 
or liable hereunder to any party other than the Grantee. 

14.30 When Rights and Remedies Not Waived: In no went shall the making by the 
Commission of any payment to the Grantee constitute or be construed as a waiver by the 
Commission of any breach of covenant or any defautt which may then exist, on the part of the 
Grantee, and the making of such payment by,the Commission while any such breach or default 
shall exist shall in no way impair or prejudice any right or remedy available to the Commission fbr 
such breach or default. 

14.40 How Contract Aftected by Provisions be in^ Held Invalid: I f  any provision of this 
Agreement is held invalid, the provision shall be severable and the remainder of this Agreement 
shall nat be affe&d. In such an instance the remainder would then amtinue to amfam to the 
terms and requirments of applicable law. 

14.50 Bonus and Commissions: By execution of the Agreement the Grantee represents that it 
has nat paid and, also, agrees nat to pay, any bonus or canmission for the purpose dobtak\ing 
an approval of its a Q p l i  for the finarrdng hereunder. 

14.60 State or Territorial Law: Nothing in the Agreement shall require the Gfantee to 
observe or enforce compliance with any provision thereof, perform any other act or do any other 
thing in conbaventim of any applicable State law: Provided, that if any of the provisions of the 
Agreement violate any applicable State bw, the Grantee wi# at once notify the Canmsum - - in 
writing in order that appropriate changes and modifications may be made by the Commissicm and 
the Agencytothe end thatthe Granteemay pruceed a s m  as possiMe with t h e m  
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18.00 Expiration of Agreement: The Grantee agrees to complete the Project on or beforeJune 30' 
2010. If the Grantee does WX complete the Pmject within this time period, this agreement will expire 
unless an extension of the time period is granted to the Grantee in writing by the Chairperson of the 
Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged or designee. Expiration of this agreement will be 
considered terminatiotl of the Project and the procedure established in Artide 9.00 of this agreement 
shall be initiated. For the purpose of this Article, completion of piwject is defined as the latest date by 
which services may have been provided or equipment funds may have been expended or obligated 
under a purchase order, as pnnnded in the project description (Exhibit "A"). Unless atherwise extmded 
by the Commission, all reimbursement invoices must be received by the Commission no later than 
August 15, 2010. 

19.00 Agreement Format: All words used herein in the singu br form shall extend to and indude the 
plural. All words used in the plural form shall extend to and indude the singular. All words used in any 
gender shall exbend to and indude all genders. 

20.00 Execution of Agreement: This agreement may be simultaneously executed in a minimum of 
two an~nterpark, each of w h i i  so executed shall be deemed to be an original, and such ownberparts 
together shall constitute one m the same instrument. 

21.00 Vendors and Subcontradm Rights: Vendors (in this doarinent identified as Grantee) 
providing goods and sewices to the Commission will receive payments in amdam with section 
215.422, florida Statutes. The parties hereto acknowledge Section 215.422, Florida Statutes, and 
hereby agree that the time in which the Commission is required to approve and inspect goods and 
services shall be for a period not to exceed eleven (11) working days upon receipt of a proper invoice. 
The Florida Department of Transportation has 20 days to deliver a request for payment (voucher) to 
the Department of Financial Services. The twenty (20) days are measured from the latter of the date 
the invoice is received or the goods or senriGes are received,  ins^, and apptuved. 

If a payment is not available within forty (40) days after receipt of the invoice and receipt, inspection 
and approval of goods and serv-#s, a separate interest penalty per day (as defined by Rule) will be due 
and payable, in addition to the invoice amount to the Grantee. The interest penalty provision applies 
afkr a thirty-five (35) day time period to health care providers, as defined by rule. Inberest penalties of 
less than one (1) dollar will not be en fo rd  unless the Grantee requests payment Invoices which have 
to be returned to a Grantee because of vendor preparation errors will resutt in a delay in the payment. 

The invoice payment requirements do not start until a properly completed invoice is pmvided to the 
Commission. 

A Vendor Ombudsman has been established within the Department of Financial Services The duties of 
this individual include acting as an advocate for vendors who may be experbdng prablems in 
obtaining timely payment@) from the Commission. The Vendor Ombudsman may be cuntaded at (850) 
413-5516 or toll free (877) 693-5236. 

21.20 Payment to Subcontractors: Payment by the Grantee to all submnbadm with apprwed 
thi~d party amtmts shall be m mplianoe with Section 287.0585, Florida StaIMes. Each third party 
contract f m  the Grantee to a subcontractor for goods or services to be performed in whole or in part 
with Transportation Oisadvantaged Trust Fund moneys, must contain the fobwing statement: 
Rannlng (jrant Agreement 2009p010 
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When a contractor receives from a state agency any payment for contractual services, 
commodities, supplies, or construction contracts, except those construction contracts 
subject to the provisions of chapter 339, the contradm shall pay such moneys received to 
each subcontractor and supplier in proportion bo the of work oompkted by 
each subcontractor and supplier at the time of receipt of the payment I f  the contractor 
re ives less than full payment, then the amtractor shall be required to disburse only the 
funds received on a pro rata basis with the contractor, subcontractors, and suppliers, 
each receiving a pmated portion based on the amount due on the payment I f  the 
contractor without reasonaMe cause fails to make payments req~~ired by this section to 
subcontracbors and suppliers within 7 working days after the receipt by the amtmdm of 
full or partial payment, the amtractor shall pay to the subcontractors and suppliers a 
penalty in the amount of onehalf of 1 percent of the amount due, per day, from the 
expiration of the period allowed herein for payment. Such penalty shall be in addition bo 
actual payments owed and shall not exceed 15 percent of the outstanding balam due. 
In addition to other fines or penalties, a person found not in compliance with any 
prwision of this subsedjon may be ordered by the amrt bo make resbhrtKm 

. . 
f o r m s  

fees and all related costs to the aggrieved party or the Department of Legal Affairs when 
it provides legal assistanae pursuant to tbis section. The Department of kgal A f M i  may 
provide legal assistance to subcontractors or vendors in proceedings brought against 
contmtors under the provisions of this section. 

22.00 Modification: This Agreement may not be changed or modified unless authorized in writing by 
the Commission. 
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FM/JOB NO(s).: 
CONTRACT NO. 
AGREEMENT DATE Julv 1,2009 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused these presents be exemted, the day and year 
first above written. 

GRANTEE: TAYLOR COUNlY BOARD OF COMMISSION FOR THE TRANSPORTAllON 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OISADVANTAGgP3 

BY: 

m E :  C k a i ~ m m  E; Executnm-t- . . 

ATTEST: 

.*':"d, &\~S-..&Q*- Nicole 6. Branch a& '(2 '-  omm mission # DD573044 $s.I'@ Expires July 11,201 0 
I #onad ?my Pam. In6urrlrce. lnc 600.365.7019 
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FMIJOB Nqs).: 21754821401 
CONTRACT NO. 7ic - 
AGREEMEN DATE: Julv 1,2009 

M H I B m  "A" 
PROJECT DESCRIPnON AND RESPONSIBIUTIES. 

PLANNING 

This exhibit forms an inbegral part of that Grant Agreement, b e e n  the Sta& of Fbrida, 
Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged and the Tavlor County Board of  count^ . . lssrners. Post Bax 620. Perry. FL 32348. 

PROJECT LOCATION : Tavlor County 

PROJECT DESCRIFWON : This prom provides for the acmmpliiment of the duties and responsibilities 
of the OfTicial Planning Agency as set forth in Chapkr 427, Florida Statutes, Rule 41-2, Florida 
Adminisbative Code, Commission policies and the Application and Policy Manual for Transportation 
Disadvantaged Planning Related Services as revised on April 13,2009. The project period will begin on 
the dabe of this agreement and will end on the date indicated in Article 18.00 hereof. Spedfic required 
tasks are as follows: 

A. When necessary and in cooperation with the local coordinating board, solicit and recanmend a 
mmunity bansportation amdinatm, in conformity with Chapters 287 and 427, Florida 
Statubes. 

B. Dwebp and maintain a process for the appointment and reappointment of voting and non- 
voting members t~ the local coordinating board (LCB). 

C. Prepare agendas for local coordinating buard meetjngs consistent with the &xalCimdinatiw 
Bwrd and Pbnniw Agrency Opevatihg GuMines: Ensure that operabw payments are 
addressed as a standard agenda item. 

D. Prepare ofTiciaI minubes of local coordinating board meetings. For comm- meetings, 
prepare minutes in the form of a brief summary of basic points, discussions, decisions, and 
recommendations to the full board. Keep records of all meetings for at least five years. 

E. Provide at least cme public hearing annually by eact~ local ooordinating board, and assist the 
Commission, as requested, in a~sponsoiing puMi hearings. This public hearing must be in 
addition to the local coordinating buard meetings. It may, however, be held in .mnjunction 
with the scheduled local coordinating board meeting (immediately following or prior to the 
local amrdinating bmrd meeting). 

F. Provide staff support for arm- of the local amdinating board. 

G. Develop and updabe annually by-laws for local mrdinating board approval. 
Planning Gmnt Agreement 2009/2010 
Form Rev. 04/14/09 Page 18 of 24 
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FM/JOB NO(s): 21754821401 
CONTRACT NO. A?J--~w 
AGREEMENT DATE: July 1.2009 

EXHIBm "Bn 
PROJECT BUDGET AND CASHFLOW 

This exhibit forms an integral part of that certain Grant Agreement between the Florida Commission Tor 
the Transportation Disadvantaged and Tavlor Countv Board of Countv Commissioners. Post Office Box 
620, Perw, FL 32348. 

I. PROJECT COST: 

Estimated Project Cost shall conform to those eligible Costs as indicated by Chapter 427, Florida 
Statutes, Rule 41-2, Florida Administrative Code, Commission policies, and the A p p l i  and Policy 
Manual for Transportation Disadvantaged Planning Related Services as revised on April 13, 2009. 

Planni~~g Related Services 
Taylor County 

TOTAL: $17,494.00 

11. SOURCE OF FUNDS 
Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged 
State Funds (lW!) $17,494.00 

Total Project Cost 517.494.00 

In. DISBURSEMENT SCHEDULE OF COMMISSION (state) FUNDS ( $ divided by 1000) 

Jul. Aug. Sep. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. 

F Y ~ I 1 0  $4.375 $4.373 $4.373 $4.373 

Planning Grant Agreement 209/2010 
Fam Rev. 04/14p9 



FMIJOB NO(s).:- 
CONTRACTNO 
AGREEMENT DATE: Juhr 1.2009 

M H f  BIT "C" 
PLANNf NG 

This exhibit forms an integral part of that certain Grant Agreement between the Florida Commission 
for the Transportation Disadvantaged and Twlor Countv Board of Countv Commissioners. Post Off& 
Box 620, Pem, R 32348. 

ME GRANTEE SHALL SUBMlT ME FOLLOWING REQUIRED DOCUMENTS AND CERTIFICATIONS: 

DOCUMENTS: 

1. Submit progress reports to the Commission quarkrly. Finished produds such as approved 
Coordinating Board rninubs, by-laws, grievance procedure and actions taken, c u n s a l i i  
estimabe of Federal and Local government transportation disadvantaged funds, and the 
Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan, as they are mpleted. The progress reports and 
finished products are required to accompany, or to precede, all reimbursement invoices. Repds 
shall be s u b m i  to: 

Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged 
Am: Regional Manager 
605 Suwannee Street, MS 49 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450 

MIRD PARTY CONTRACTS: The Grantee must certify to all third patty contracts pursuant to Section 
12;lO except that written approval is hereby granted for: 

1 Contracts furnishing contractual services or commodities from a valid or inter- 
governmental conmct as set in section 287.042(2), Florida Statuks. 

2. Contracts furnishing contractual services or commodities for an amount less than Category 11 
as set fath in section 287.107(1Xb), Florida Statutes. 

3. Contracts for msukant services for an amount less than Category I as set forth in section 
187.0 17(1Xa), Florida Statutes. 

Planning Grant Agreement M09/2010 
Fam Rev. 04/14/09 
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REPORTING: 
Submii progress reports to the Commission quarterly. Finished products such as approved 
Coordinating Board minutes, by-laws, grievance procedure and actions taken, consolidated estimate 
of Federal and Local government transportation disadvantaged funds, and the Transpatatbn 
Disadvantaged Service Plan, as they are completed. The progress reports and finished products are 
required to accompany, or to precede, all reimbursement invoke. (Grant Agrwnent, Exhibit C) 

Submit mpy of financial reporting packages of audits as required in Section 7.60 of this Agreement 
and the Application and Pdicy Manual, Seclion 6. 

MATCHING: 
There is no mat& requirement fw this grant 

PERIOD OF AVAILABILZTY: 
Project expenditures eligible fw State participation will be albwed only from the date of this 
Agreement. (Grant Agreement Pmvision 4.20) 

SUBRECIPIENT MONITORING: 
Third party contracts are amtracts W e e n  a grantee and any subgrantee, or pass through funding 
recipient, consultants, or others in the private sector for work needed to carry out a project Unless 
otherwise authorized in writing by the Commission, the Grantee may not execute any amtract or 
obligate itself in any manner requiring the disbursement of Transportation Disadvantaged Trust 
Fund money, induding tramportation operator and cunsuttant cunttacts or amerKhmb thereto, 
with any third party with respect to the project without being able to provide a written certification 
(upon the Commission's request) by the Grantee that the con- or digation was executed in 
accordanoe with the competitive procurement requirements of Chapter 287, Flotida Statuks, 
Chapter 427, Fbrida Statutes, and the rules promulgated by the Department of Management 
Services. The procurement, execution, audit and closing of third-party contracts are hasii grantee 
responsibilii and must be carried out using the same guidelines and procedures as described in 
Chapter 287, Fbrida Statutes. Inter-agency agreements or contracts passing through grant funds 
to other public bodies (induding public transit operabors) or transportation opembas as defined in 
Chapter 427, Fbrida Statutes, are not third-party mtracts. However, the pass-through recipient 
must comply with Chapter 287, Florida !XabksI if it enters into any subsequent third-party contract 
using Transportation Disadvantaged Trust Funds. (Grant Agreement Provision 12.10; Application 
and Policy Manual, Section 6) 

In addition to reviews of audits conducted in accordanoe with W o n  215.97, Florida StaM~s, as 
revised, monitoring procedures may indude, but not be limited to, onsite visits by Commission 
staff. The Grantee agrees bo cunply and amperate fully with any rnonitming p r o c e d u r e s / ~  
deemed appropriate by the Canmission, the Florida Department of Trans-s office of 
Inspector General (OIG) and Florida's Chief Financial Officer or Auditor General. (Application and 
Policy Manual, Sedion 6) 

Planning Gram Agreement 2009/2010 
Fam Rev. 04/14/09 Page 24 of 24 



RORIDA COMMISSION FOP TIlL 

FTrtation 
Disa vantaged 

Jeb Bush 
Governor 

JR Harding M.D. 
Chairperson 

Donna Loggie 
Vice Chairpenon 

Lisa M. Bacot 
Executive Director 

September 28, 2006 

Mr. Edward Waters 
Big Bend Transit, Inc. 
Post Office Box 1721 
Tallahassee, FL 32302 

Ms. Melody Cox 
Taylor County Board of County Commissioners 
Post Office Box 620 
Perry, FL 32348 

Dear Mr. Waters and Ms. Cox: 

RE: Taylor County Community Transportation Coordinator Designation 
Memorandum of Agreement TD 0638 

Congratulations! At the September 15, 2006, Commission for the Transportation 
Disadvantaged meeting, the Commission approved the Big Bend Transit, Inc. 
to serve as the Community Transportation Coordinator for Taylor County. This 

designation is effective October 1, 2006 through June 30,201 1. 
C 

- =  

Enclosed are two copies of the Memorandum of Agreement boilerplate. Please 
execute and return both copies of the agreement. The Commissior~ for the 
Transportation Disadvantaged will execute the agreement and a copy of the 
agreement will be returned to the Community Transportation Coordinator. 

Also enclosed is the Coordinated Transportation Contracting Instructions. These 
instructions should b e  used when completing the Transportation Disadvantaged 
Service Plan. This plan should be completed and submitted to our office no later 

. Until such time, please submit an 
order to allow trips to continue being 

provided through the irip and tquipment graint, which is currently in place. 

The Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged appreciates your continued 
support and participation in the coordinated transportation system of Taylor 
County. If you have any questions or need any additional information, please call 
Erin Schepers at 850-41 0-571 0 or email her at erin.schepers@dot.state.fl.us. 

Li sm Bacot 
Executive Director 

Enclosures: 2 Memorandums of Agreements t- 
Coordinated Transportation Contracting Instructions 

605 Suwannee Street, MS-49 m Tallahassee, FL 32399-0450 
Phone: (850) 410-5700 m Toll Free: (800) 983-2435 m Fax: (850) 410-5752 

www.dot.state.fl.uslctd 



rn September 28, 2006 

FLORIDA COMMISSION FOR THE 

Trans rtation 
~isad&taged Mr. Edward Waters 

Big Bend Transit, Inc. 
post Office Box 1721 

Jeb Bush Tallahassee, FL 32302 
Governor 

JR Harding M.D. Ms. Melody Cox 
Chaimenon Taylor County Board of County Commissioners ~,-  ~- ~ 

Post Office Box 620 
Donna Loggie Perry, FL 32348 
Vice Chairperson 

Dear Mr. Waters and Ms. Cox: 
Lisa M. Bacot 
Executive Director RE: Taylor County Community Transportation Coordinator Designation 

Memorandum of Agreement TD 0638 

Congratulations! At the September 15, 2006, Commission for the Transportation 
Disadvantaged meeting, the Commission approved the Big Bend Transit, Inc. 
to serve as the Community Transportation Coordinator for Taylor County. This 
designation is effective October 1, 2006 through June 30, 201 1. 

Enclosed are two copies of the Memorandum of Agreement boilerplate. Please 
execute and return both copies of the agreement. The Commission for the 
Transportation Disadvantaged will execute the agreement and a copy of the 
agreement will be returned to the Community Transportation Coordinator. 

Also enclosed is the Coordinated Transportation Contracting Instructions. These 
instructions should be used when completing the Transportation Disadvantaged 
Service Plan. This plan should be completed and submitted to our office no later 
than 120 days after the designation date. Until such time, please submit an 
operations description and rate page(s) in order to allow trips to continue being 
provided through the Trip and Equipment grant, which is currently in place. 

The Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged appreciates your continued 
support and participation in the coordinated transportation system of Taylor 
County. If you have any questions or need any additional information, please call 
Erin Schepers at 850-410-571 0 or email her at erin.schepers@dot.state.fl.us. 

Executive Director 

Enclosures: 2 Memorandums of Agreernents 
Coordinated Transportation Contracting Instructions 

605 Suwannee Street, MS-49 w Tallahassee, FL 32399-0450 
Phone: (850) 410-5700 w Toll Free: (800) 983-2435 w Fax: (850) 410-5752 

www.dotstate.fl.uslctd 



Florida Commission b r  the 
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AND 
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Issued By: 

FLORIDA COMMISSION FOR THE TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED 
605 Suwannee Street, Mail Station 49 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450 
850-410-5700 

Fax 850-410-5752 
Internet http://www.dot.state.fl.us/ctd 



I. INTRODUCnON 
The purpose of these guidelines is to give clear instructions and uniform guidance in the 
administration, duties, and operating practices of local Coordinating Boards (LCB) and 
Planning Agencies. 

11. PURPOSE OF M E  LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD 
The purpose of each LCB is to develop local service needs and to provide information, I 

advice and direction to the Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) on the 
coordination of services to be provided to the transportation disadvantaged within their 
local service area. In  general, the LCB is considered an advisory body. (Section 
427.0157, Florida Statutes). 

111. ADMINISRATION OF M E  LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD 
A. Planning Agency Responsibilities 

The Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) or Designated Official Planning 
Agency (DOPA), also uniformly referred to as the Planning Agency, shall provide the 
LCB with sufficient staff support and resources to enable the LCB to fulfill its 
responsibilities as set forth in Chapter 427, Florida Statutes. These responsibilities 
il-~clude providing sufficient staff to manage and oversee the duties of the LCB. This 
iricludes, but is not limited to, assistance in the scheduling of meetings; training 
board members; evaluating cost effectiveness; reviewing the local Transportation 
Disadvantaged Service Plan (TDSP); preparing, duplicating, and distributing meeting 
packets; and other necessary administrative duties and costs, as appropriate. 

0. Meetings 
The LCB shall meet as often as necessary in order to meet its responsibilities. 
However, the LCB shall meet at least quarterly with a quorum of its membership. All 
meetings, including committee meetings, will function under the "Government in the 
Sunshine Law." All meetings will provide opportunity for public comments on their 
agenda. Meetings by teleconference are prohibited since these meetings are "local." 

C. Meeting Notices 
1. Full Board Meeting Notices 

All LCB meetings, public hearings, committee meetings, etc., shall be 
advertised, at a minimum, in the Florida Administrative Weekly (FAW) two 
weeks prior to the meeting. (For information on how to submit meeting 
notices, visit the Department of State's website at www.flrules.org or contact 
them at Florida Administrative Code, Weekly and Laws, Florida Department of 
State, R.A. Gray Building, Mail Station 22, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0250; Tel.: 
850-245-6270; Fax: 850-245-6282; or Email: 

Local Coordinating Board and Planning Agency Operating Guidelines 
Rev. February 2010 
Page 2 of 8 



Meeting notice shall include date, time, location, general naturelsubject of the 
meeting, and a contact person and number to call for additional information 
and request accessible formats. 

Planning Agency staff shall provide the agenda ar~d meeting package to the 
Commission, LCB members and all other interested parties one week prior to 
the meeting. Special consideration to the advanced delivery time of certain 
technical or detailed documents, such as the TDSP, shall be given for 
additional review time. The agenda shall include a public participation 
opportunity. 

2. Emergency Meeting Notices and Committee Meeting Notices 
Planning Agency staff shall give the Commission, LCB members and all 
interested parties one week notice, if possible, of the date, time, location, and 
proposed agenda for the LCB committee meetings and emergency meetings. 
Meeting materials shall be provided as early as possible. Emergency/ 
Committee Meetings shall be advertised in the FAW as well. 

D. Minutes 
Planning Agency staff is responsible for preparing and maintaining an official set of 
minutes for each LCB meeting regardless of the presence of a quorum. The minutes 
shall be prepared in a reasonable time following the meeting and shall include an 
attendance roster indicating what agency organization or position each member 
represents and reflect a summary of official actions taken by the LCB. The record of 
official actions shall include who made and seconded the motion, as well as who 
voted for and against the motions. I f  there is no quorum, action items will be tabled 
until the next LCB meeting. Minutes shall reflect that no official action was taken 
and a summary of discussion. Meeting minutes shall be provided at the next 
regularly scheduled LCB meeting for approval. Copies of approved minutes shall be 
sent to the Commission in the quarterly report. Committee meetings minutes may 
be in the form of a brief summary of basic points, discussions, decisions, and 
recommendations to the full board. 

IV. LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD MEMBERSHIP 
A. OFFICERS 

1. CHAIRPERSON 
The Planning Agency shall appoint an elected official to serve as the official 
Chairperson for all LCB meetings. The appointed chairperson shall be an 
elected official ,from the cou~ity that the LCB serves (41-2.012(1) FAC). For a 
multi-county LCB, the Chairperson shall be from one of the counties involved. 
The Chairperson shall be appointed to serve for a two-year term or less (if the 
individual is no longer in office). The Planning Agency shall replace or reappoint 
the Chairperson at the end of his/her term. 

Local Coordinating Board and Planning Agency Operating Guidelines 
Rev. February 2010 
Page 3 of 8 



2. VICE-CHAIRPERSON 
The LCB shall hold an annual organizational meeting for the purpose of electing 
a Vice-Chairperson (41-2.012(2) FAC). The Vice Chairperson shall be elected by 
a majority vote of a quorum of the members of the LCB members. The Vice 
Chairperson shall serve a term of one year starting with the first meeting after 
the election. For a multi-county board, an elected official not serving as the 
Chairperson shall serve as Vice Chairperson. I n  the event of the Chairperson's 
absence, the Vice Chairperson shall assume the duties of the Chairperson and 
conduct the meeting. The Vice Chairperson may serve more than one term. 

B. VOTING MEMBERS 
1. An elected official ,from the service area, serving as the chairperson; 
2. A local representative of the Florida Department of Transportation; 
3. A local representative of the Florida Department Children and Family Services; 
4. A representative of the Public Education Community which could include, but not 

be limited to, a representative of the District School Board, School Board 
Transportation Office, or Headstart Program in areas where the School District is 
responsible; 

5. In  areas where they exist, a local representative of the Florida Division of 
Vocational Rehabilitation or the Division of Blind Services, representing the 
Department of Education; 

6. A person who is recognized by the Veterans Service Office representing the 
veterans in the county; 

7. A person who is recognized by the Florida Association for Community Action 
(President) representing the economically disadvantaged in the county; 

8. A person over sixty representing the elderly in the county; 
9. A person with a disability-representing the disabled in the county; 
10. Two citizen advocate representatives in the county; one who must be a person 

who uses the transportation service(s) of the system as their primary mearts of 
transportation; 

11. A local representative for children at risk; 
12. I n  areas where they exist, the Chairperson or designee of the local Mass Transit 

or Public Transit System's Board, except in cases where they are also the CTC. 
13. A local representative of the Florida Department of Elder Affairs; 
14. An experienced representative of the local private for profit transportation 

industry. In  areas where such representative is not available, a local private non- 
profit representative will be appointed except where said representative is also 
the CTC. I n  cases where no private for-profit or private non-profit 
representatives are available in the service area, this position will not exist on the 
LCB; 

15. A local representative of the Florida Agency for Health Care Administration; 
16. A representative of the Regional Workforce Development Board established in 

Chapter 445, Florida Statutes; and 

Local Coordinating Board and Planning Agency Operating Guidelines 
Rev. February 2010 
Page 4 of 8 
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the Planning Agency every two years. Individuals can be re-appointed for more than one 
term. 

VI. ATTENDANCE 
The Planning Agency shall review, and consider rescinding, the appointment of any 
member of the LCB who fails to attend three consecutive meetings. The LCB shall notify 
the Comrnission if arly state agency voting member or their alternate fails to attend three 
consecutive meetings. 

VII. BY-LAWS AND PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURES 
The LCB shall develop and adopt a set of by-laws. The by-laws shall state that the LCB will 
conduct business using parliamentary procedures according to Robert's Rules of Order, 
unless stated otherwise in the by-laws. The by-laws shall be reviewed, updated (if 
necessary), and adopted annually. It is recommended that the by-laws are reviewed and 
approved during the first quarter (July-September). Approved by-laws shall be submitted 
to the Commission. 

VIII. LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD DUTIES 
The LCB shall: 

A. Review and make recommendations regarding the approval of the Memorandum of 
Agreement between the newly recommended CTC and the Commission. 

B. Annually review, make recommendations and approve the Transportation Disadvantaged 
Service Plan (TDSP). The LCB shall ensure that the TDSP has been developed by involving 
all appropriate parties in the process. 

C. Annually, provide the MPOIplanning agency with an evaluation of the CTC's performance in 
general and relative to Insurance, Safety Requirements and Standards as referenced in Rule 
41-2.006, FAC, and the performance results of the most recent TDSP (41-2.012(5)(b) FAC). 
As part of the CTC's performance, the LCB shall also set an annual percentage goal increase 
(or establish a percentage) for the number of trips provided within the system to be on 
public transit. The LCB shall utilize the Cornmissior~'~ Quali,ty Assurance Performance 
Evaluation Tool to evaluate the performance of the CTC. This evaluation will be submitted 
to the Commission upon approval by the LCB. In  areas where a planning agency serves as 
the CTC, the planning agency shall abstain from any official actions that represent a conflict 
of interest, especially in the evaluation process of the CTC. 

D. In  cooperation with the CTC, review ar~d provide recommendations to the Commission and 
the MPO or Designated Official Planning Agency, on all applications for local government, 
state or federal funds relating to transportation of the transportation disadvantaged in the 
designated service area to ensure that any expenditures within the designated service area 
are provided in the most cost effective and efficient manner (427.0157(3)FS). The 
accomplishment of this requirement shall include the development and implementation of a 
process by which the Coordinating Board and CTC have an opportunity to become aware of 
any federal, state or local government funding requests and provide recommendations 
regarding the expenditure of such funds. Such funds may include expenditures for 
operating, capital or administrative needs. Such a process should include at least: 
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I. Annually hold at a minimum, one public hearing for the purpose of receiving input on unmet 
needs or any other areas that relate to the local transportation services. The public hearing 
will be held at a place and time that is convenient and accessible to the general public. In  
order that additional funding is not used or needed to accommodate this requirement, it is 
recommended that the public hearing be held in conjunction with a regular business meeting 
of the Coordinating Board (immediately following or prior to the LCB meeting). A public 
hearing held jointly with the Commission will satisfy this annual requirement. 

J. All coordinating board members should be trained on and comply with the requirements of 
Section 112.3143, Florida Statutes, concerning voting conflicts of interest (41-2.012(5)(d) 
FAC). 

K. Work cooperatively with regional workforce boards established in chapter 445 to provide 
assistance in the development of innovative transportation services for participants in the 
welfare transition program (427.0157(7) FS). 

L. Evaluate multi county or regional transportation opportu~iities (427.0157(6), FS). 
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